TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

Board of Selectmen Agenda
October 8, 2020 @ 6:00 PM
VIRTUAL MEETING VIA ZOOM (Instructions)

Ways to join this webinar

Join by computer or mobile device and click on_ https:// us/1i;

or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 988 3709 6139
By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US

10.

11.

12.

13.

. Call to Order.

. Approve the September 24, 2020, selectmen meeting minutes.

Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address
the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.).

Public hearing to amend the Traffic and Control Ordinance to place a stop sign at
the intersection of Kings Highway and Dyke Road

Wastewater infrastructure update.
Cape Porpoise Pier update.

Approve street opening permit for Dana & Mary Hutchins on Langsford Road for new
sewer service and conduit for power.

Sign Municipal Valuation Return

Consider a renewal liquor license application submitted by Asador, LLC, DBA The Lost
Fire, 62 Mills Road.

Consider a renewal liquor license application submitted by Maine-ly English, Inc.,
DBA 1802 House Bed and Breakfast Inn, 115 Locke Street.

Consider appointments to the Shellfish Conservation Committee.
Discuss short-term rental regulations.

Accept resignation from the Senior Advisory Committee.



14. Discuss November and December meeting schedule. (Nov. 26 is Thanksgiving and
Dec. 24 is Christmas Eve)

15. Other Business.

16. Approve the October 8, 2020, Treasurer's Warrant.

17. Adjournment.






Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting VIA Zoom
September 24, 2020
5:00 PM

Minutes of the Selectmen’s Meeting of September 24, 2020

Selectmen attending via Zoom: Patrick A. Briggs, Allen A. Daggett, Ed Hutchins
(attended after executive session), Sheila Mathews-Bull, and D. Michael Weston.

Others attending via Zoom: Mike Claus, Richard Driver, Alison Kenneway, Sharon
McCabe, Jim McMann, Arlene McMurray, Tracey O’Roak, David Powell, Craig Sanford,
Laurie Smith, and others

1. Call to Order.

Chair Daggett called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM. He took roll call of Selectmen
present: Patrick Briggs, Allen Daggett, Sheila Matthews-Bull, and D. Michael Weston.

2. 5:00 PM Executive Session per (MRSA 1, §405-6E) for consultation with Town
attorney to discuss legal rights and duties.

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Briggs, to go into
executive session for consultation with the Town Attorney to discuss legal rights and
duties. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 4-0.
Motion passed.

The Board went into executive session at 5:00 PM and came out at 6:44 PM.
No action was taken.

3. ESTIMATED 6:00 PM - Approve the September 10, 2020, selectmen meeting
minutes.

The meeting resumed at 6:44 PM.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve the
September 10, 2020 selectmen meeting minutes. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett,
Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

4. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address
the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.).

Jim McMann read the letter he sent to the Town Manager and Selectmen. It basically
said that a subcommittee formed in 2018 conducted a public survey and found that there
was no desire for a short-term rental ordinance. It requests any information since 2018
on short-term rentals such as emails, complaints received by staff or police, etc. It also
asks the Selectmen to not move forward with the ordinance until after he receives this
information.



Selectmen’s Meeting -2- September 24, 2020

Chair Daggett said the Board will comply with his requests.

Sharon McCabe added that her group would be pleased to get the information McMann
requests so that they can make an informed decision.

5. Public hearing to adopt the MMA Model Ordinance GA Appendices A-H for the
period October 1, 2020-September 30, 2021.

Public Health Nurse Alison Kenneway summarized the General Assistance Ordinance.
Chair Daggett opened the public hearing at 6:56 PM and closed it at 6:56 PM.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman Hutchins, to adopt the MMA
Model Ordinance GA Appendices A—-H for the period October 1, 2020-September 30,
2021. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett, Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted:
5-0. Motion passed.

6. Discussion of GRBAC recommendation to place a stop sign at the intersection
of King’s Highway and Dyke Road.

Town Manager Laurie Smith explained that the Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Committee
met on August 30. Police Chief Craig Sanford and Michael Claus also attended and
listened to the pros and cons of placing a stop sign.

Richard Driver said that people do not slow down at that intersection and even though
there was never an accident, they should be proactive and fix the problem before an
accident occurs. He explained that out of towners do not know that the people coming
from the east end have the right of way.

The Board agrees that the sign should be placed at the east side of Kings Highway.
Selectman Weston added that initially he did not support adding a sign until he went
there and saw that pedestrians were confused, and cars were not stopping.

Chief Sanford said it makes sense to put up another stop sign because of poor visibility.

Ms. Smith added that they will need to have a public hearing.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull to move forward
with the process to amend the traffic control ordinance. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett,
Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Jim McMann added they might want to consider having a yield sign.

7. Discuss next steps for the development of a trail at Village Parcel.

Ms. Smith said they discussed at one of their meetings this summer developing a trail
and beautification plan for the Village Parcel. Public Works Director Mike Claus had also
presented them with a budget to construct a parking lot, gate, and trail. The total cost is



Selectmen’s Meeting -3- September 24, 2020

under $13,000. The Town authorized up to $20,000 at the July Town Meeting from the
Special Revenue Open Land Reserve fund. Steve Doe designed a trail map. A 10-car
gravel parking lot will be built at the North Street entrance.

Jim McMann suggested allowing designated hunting areas for youth for a short period of
time.

Selectman Hutchins responded that at this point it is public property and people can hunt
there.

Selectman Matthews-Bull suggested that they check with the abutters first.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to expend $13,000
for a trail and parking lot plan at the Village Parcel. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett,
Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

8. Award recycling contracts with ecomaine and Casella Waste Management.

Mr. Claus said the Town authorized the restart of recycling beginning in January of 2021.
He has been working with ecomaine and Casella Waste for new contracts for the pickup
and disposal of recycling. The plan is to maintain the same schedule as in previous
years. He said the Town Attorney reviewed the contract and said there could be added
costs and penalties.

Discussion followed:

e Selectman Matthews-Bull was concerned about the added costs and that perhaps
they could add a sunset clause in case it ends up costing too much if people do
not cooperate.

¢ Selectman Weston said they have an audit program that warns if people don’t
follow the rules and will discontinue collecting their recycling.

o Chair Daggett said they can review this again next year.

Motion by Selectman Weston, seconded by Selectman to authorize the contracts with
ecomaine and Casella Waste. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett, Hutchins, Matthews-
Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed

9. Award the police cruiser bid.

Chief Sanford said the police department has completed the bid process for the
purchase of a new 2021 Dodge Charger. He solicited bids from five dealerships in Maine
and New Hampshire and received one bid back. He is recommending the bid from Lee
Dodge/Jeep for a total price of $24,337.00 which includes a trade in on a used 2010
Ford Explorer of $5,000.00 which barely passed inspection. The total budgeted amount



Selectmen’s Meeting -4 - September 24, 2020

for the purchase and swap over is $ 31,000. This new charger is an all-wheel drive
version.

Motion by Selectman seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman
Hutchins, to award the bid for the police cruiser to Lee Dodge/Jeep for a total price of
$24,337.00 which includes a trade in on the 2010 Ford Explorer of $5,000. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Daggett, Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0.

Motion passed.

10. Other Business.

Town Clerk Tracey O'Roak said she applied for a COVID-19 Response Grant to cover
costs for elections. She received notice today that she was successful and is receiving
$5,000. She plans to use it as listed below:

Payroll for election day, absentee ballot stuffing and early absentee processing
Signs for absentee voting, election day guidance on rules/regs

Absentee envelope labels

Election supplies (pens, letter openers, etc.)

Storage containers for absentee ballots

Our portion of the absentee ballot box

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to accept the
Center For Tech and Civic Life Grant for $5,000. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Daggett,
Hutchins, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed

Ms. O’'Roak said she expects the absentee ballots to arrive on October 5. She asked
people to call her if they do not get the ballot in the mail by the middle of October. She
said there is a link on her website that explains rank choice voting. In order to be
counted, she needs to receive the ballots by 8 PM.

Ms. Smith mentioned that Bill Case was interested in the parcel where the old town barn
is located for pickleball courts. She asked if the Board was interested in leasing or selling
it.

Discussion followed and it was decided that they still have a need for this property to
store equipment. Ms. Smith will speak to Parks and Recreation Director Carol Cook to
see if she has any suggestions for a location for pickleball courts.

Ms. Smith said there is another four by two meeting being set up for September 30 at 5
PM. Chair Daggett and Selectman Weston volunteered to attend.



Selectmen’s Meeting -5- September 24, 2020

11. Approve the September 24, 2020, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to approve the
September 24, 2020, selectmen meeting minutes. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins,
Daggett, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

12. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to adjourn. Roll
Call Vote: Briggs, Hutchins, Daggett, Matthews-Bull, and Weston. Voted: 5-0.

Motion passed.
The meeting adjourned at 7:58 PM.

Submitted by Arlene McMurray
Administrative Assistant






Item 4

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Kennebunkport Board of Selectmen will
conduct a public hearing on Thursday, October 8, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. via
Zoom to take public comment on the proposed amendment to the
Kennebunkport Traffic and Parking Control Ordinance listed below.

“Section 3. Stopping at Intersections

40.Kings Highway (from West End and East End) & Dyke
Road: For traffic moving from Kings Highway onto Dyke Road
or continuing in an easterly direction onto Kings Highway.”

Copies of the proposed ordinance revision will be available for review at the
office of the Town Clerk, 6 Elm Street, Kennebunkport.

Tracey O’Roak
Town Clerk



<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

<G



NKPORT,MAINE
~ INCORPORATED 1653 —
MEMORANDUM
To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager
From: Chris Simeoni, Public Works Deputy Director
Date: October 2, 2020
RE: Wastewater Management Restructuring

As you are aware, our current Chief Treatment Operator at the wastewater plant, Brice
Bond, has resigned his position. This leaves an opening for Chief Treatment Plant Operator
or other management titled position. With the Town's Capital Improvement Program
increasing in scope for facilities and public works, both the Public Works Director and |
believe it may be a good opportunity to explore and further consider the restructuring of
Public Works.

With this current opening, we are proposing that we consider the possibility of hiring a
professional engineer who could perform engineering functions throughout the Public Works
Department rather than just hiring a Chief Treatment Plant Operator who would be limited
to Wastewater operations.

With respect to wastewater, a professional engineer can serve as the person in responsible
charge of the wastewater treatment plant, oversee lab work and process control, and be
responsible for oversite of new pre-treatment efforts that will allow an increase in plant
efficiency and lower our operating costs. The responsibility of lab work and process control
could remain with the lead operator.

This is not an uncommon model. A number of districts have a professional engineer on
staff and some, such as Kennebunk and Wells, do not have a Chief Treatment Plant
Operator. The lead operator is responsible for lab work and conferring with the engineer on
process control changes before implementation.

A significant benefit to this model would be having a professional engineer on the Public
Works staff to help with the planning and construction administration of future construction
projects of all types (not just wastewater) overseen by the Public Works Department. As
you know, we budget for construction administration costs for these projects. Having an
engineer on staff to fulfill this role could also result in a savings to the Town on capital project
costs. A professional engineer experienced in project management would likely result in
more efficient completion of capital projects with less error.

We believe this change would allow Public Works to grow and be brought to a higher
industry standard in terms of compliance, personnel management and structure. We look
forward to discussing this possibility with you and the Board of Selectmen.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470

Item 5



UuoLsSSNDSL(
jusawaAolduw| jejide)
UOILSLALQ
193eMIJSBM SHIOM
oL|gnd Jo juawjiedaq

JAOdMINNGINNINA
40 NMOL



**"ul 9Je sJaqunu ay|

92431d IYystuMm Aq
pa39)dwod usa(q sey
ueld Ajljtqeuteisns
je9si4 syl



000°926°0€$ - - : - 12101
s1e303gnS
- 000°€19°8S 000°069°0LS 000°8€9°GS 000°G86°SS alqelawit]

Wwa1sAS
000°€68°£1S  000°GO¥ ‘€S 000°GZZ‘GS  000°€60°GS 000°0Z9°€S uotld21j0)

uotiels
000°0LE‘YS  000°OVL‘TS 000°056S 000°SEYS 000°G8/$ dwnd
000°€Z/°8S  000°890°¢€S 000°G96°€S 000°0LLS  000°08S°‘LS d1MM

uonydLidsaq
S|e}O] 39SSY | SJeaA 0Z-9L | SIBSA GL-LL | SJedA OL-9 SIE3A G-0 19SSy




jende) di MM Modyungauud) 40 UM |

isyonw os Aym j1equinu
slq e sL 000°9Z6°0€S.,

'SIUSWIISDAUL 3SaY] Sulyew Ul palaplsuod st jey)
1010k} B 9(q 03 aAeY )1IM Ajloeded se 9sInod auniny
PSpua]ul UNo I9PISUOD 0} Paau o9m ‘0s Sulop U],

‘faenb

J91eM S auley 109104d pue 931A19S poos aplaoud

0] SNULIUOD UL 9M 0S WIISAS Uno Jo AjlLgerial pue

A3L1893uUL 9Y3 ulejulew 0} sapelsdn Ul SJUSWISSAUL
saiinbal pue Ajpideu Suige st wa3sAs unQ

jJeak
SIY3 P10 SJeah (g aJe S1asse Jus4ind JINo JO WS



SIEVIN O | JBOLYHINTD Sd IFFD SIVEELL

-
SAVIX -0 | NOLLY¥IS dIX1d OVO¥ LOMHISIA STATN ¢
SYYIEL 50 | MOLVHINIO Sd V0¥ LONLLSIA SIGTN | :

I AEAGR | NOLLVIS dIN3d TINTAY NVII0 | i
] SNOLLVLS dIV.2d
SUVIL 01-9 ____ £0-d-4\I WOI a4y | €L
SUVIL 019 10-G-ANI ¥O5 A4\ o
SYVIEI 019 L TENYd TOUINOD dN1d LN Y443 17
SUYER 019 | TENVd TOWINOD diNd INTYIINE ot
SUVIR 50 | INYId INTINIVINL WOLVNINIO 8
S¥VIL -0 __ 7= SSTud WAL Tis 1139 s
SAVAX -0 I=SSTHE YIL T3 1139 z
SAVIL -G m_ S= WIDATE IANIA WILIEY DD 9
SHYIR -0 m i= ¥IDATY T ANIA FILATAC IO 3
SWYAR 50 T= MOLOJ\ TANIA WY 1D +
SUVIY 50 1= YOLOIX TAMYA WY'ID €
SAVIR -0 | SINSINVHOIN I= ¥ILIWVE) ¥e1I0WD N
SHVI G | SINSINYHOIBN 1= WILANIY IO WY T IDUID I
XLIHDVI INTNIVINLE ¥EIVAIISY A
FISVLIINLL TVANINTE | NOLLATIDS3d  3INVY
SLISSV

NOLLYVIS dIVMd ¥ 41\ W\ XITYOTIYd HOIH YOd4 STITIVINIUL TVAMINTY
+-STITEVE



"udisap Arenmumjaid Sump panaiAar aq pinots Alfiqisea] Surmjar Jamag aATRAIISUOD 3q 0) SnbiI33) TOTIANISUOS TOTRABDXS Toual} ind-Tado Smsn payermmyss tseq aawy s1s02 Joaford ramag

‘soseqd udisap feury pue Areurmesd Suunp posepdn aq pinos ss00 109{01d OBJUT o) JUN0008 J0U 0p PU. SIEIOP (6107 AEYN) fuesaud ur aFe SojemNSa 1500 J0afolg

AVLITCUOL HVURDLIOWE k—(—..wsﬁﬂmo pue CCIF—& MR DYy VY HTRIGE vl oc—.\:—liw FYTEVAM MULIGYY WL TcCp WHGIR] oY

t

R

(c86°18S) _f OsTbey® | Gerzse®) | (ovosss) | (osT'ms) - 000'66L LS TVIOL ANVYD
OoTIews) | (e80s91s) | (1801S) - . - 000'660°1S TVIOLENS .
| n SNOILYIS
(O70L'Lp9) - - - - NYO'T 148 ¥YHA-0 000°6188 NOILVIS dNNd QY0¥ JOMISIA STTTA 0 %
(1880£919) | (1s'80£918) | (18'80€°1) - - NVO'T RIS AVEA-07 0000828 NOLLYLS dWNd ANFAY NVE0 |
(8p7'S678) (875678 (8pT'5679) (8p7'5678) N - 000°65pS V101408 !
(5Akey) (s74°L28) (szL'Lz8) (SzL'Lts) - NVO'T 148 ¥VAA-07 000°9L48 SYIMTS HOVAL SMO0WIS00D
. . . h o SYAMAS VAUV 1S T00HIS
(089'69) (089°6L9) (089'6L3) {089'6L8) - NVOT 148 ¥VAA-07 000'89€ T8 WIISAS |
¥ NIVIN 20804 ININTEH AIMM
NOLLDATTO0)
,. n n n ﬁ SAMAS VIV 1S INIVI
(86 748) (586 74%) (586'748) (c86°748) - NYOT £4S YVAR-0 000'€L8
_ ¥ NIVIN 30404 74 8d
(Logvpis) | (sgwmi) | Gsgwis) | (Lsvid) - NVO'T 188 ¥VHA-07 000°18¢'8 SYAAES VAV ANNAAY NVAD0
GrL'zzrg) s (08T'TS) _ (0s1'T$%) (08T°TH8) - 000°L01'Z8 TVLI0140S
(0LT'v1g) (oLTyte) (ocz'v1s) (0z¥19) (0zp19) NVOT¥S ¥Vak-07 000°H7S INV'd INENLVASL NOLVIAND | x1rmova
(th5189) (h5°18%) NYO'T S YVAA-0T 000°00+'1§ TP 14 SST VAL 17138 | INTWLVTIL
(ss¥519) (6st€19) (49330), (sst'c19) (ss4°€18) NYO'T 1S VAA-07 000°1€78 TNV Wy oy | SLVASLISYAL
{scr'erg) (ssr'e1g) (ssr'e1s) (st'e1s) (sst'c1s) NYO'T 1S YVHA-0 000°1£78 T YATNIVTD ¥V IO
170X X2 (448} {40 0zxd TIHN0S ONIAONAA o180 1DAr0dd NOILARIDSAT 1LHAr0Ud
NV'Td INTNTAQUAII TVLIEVD UVAXS

LRERCYH VAN



ang-IyEuy 67T VLT
Peoy 1) peoy Yoa1) 4pped
0 0¢ £861 VN | VN | UN 8 JAd 169 €| # v Apoedy | AbT0880 | 60'Sd uonelg dumg
Hd¢ peoy PRSI 10RRID
0 0¢ 86l | wedord | b | A0k | WN vl WN v v | v SPOAL €L | WO-TG099IND | 9-80-Sd | 8z vonmg dwng
peoy
peoy asKq 1RSI SR,
0 0¢ 1861 VN | VN VX | o Ad S | 0F | 8t 00¢ PPOOlL | SRMIST | A€0880 | 80°Sd Tonelg dong
peoy a1y 101eRua0)
0 0¢ 861 | TESTA | Sk | HAEO8k | VN ¥ VN VN VN | VN SN[, | T9E0L0SE | O-0Sd | Levones dmng
peoy yoar) PeOY ¥3ar) steqmn
0 0f 1861 VAL | ¥ Vi 9 A 099¢ 0 | % 00p Ppoold | seQmLis | A-720880 | (0S4 “uoneElg dwng
VY MIAAY UL
0 0¢ #3861 YN | ¥ N JAd € | 8¢ 41! Ppooy | wedQ 6l | ATI0880 | 905 uonelg dimng
aoans g | 130 TR
0 0f 0261 ¥ | v ¥iN b | uoyise) $69 £ | & 07l WOS9. | 6178880 | S0-Sd | pnog ‘woneig dmmng
AY JORRTN
67 0¢ gl0 | wedosd | 07 | HASO8K | WN vl YN | VN VAN | WIN W2003 | 666660810 | Ot0-Sd | k= uoneig dmng
WY 181D sHMD
67 0¢ 8107 YN | VAL | WK 9 | uoqise) §6T s | T 00p | sicwmgng | wengg | b0-Sd monwig dimng
Ry _ ORIy
(14 0f glor | wwedod | 07 | HAEOBY | YN ¥iN VN VS| VN [ W WO ES | GSS6EE08I0 | O-€0-Sd | s voneg dung
Ay 1990 AU220)
67 0¢ 810¢ ¥ | VN | VX 9 | womise) ¢ 01 | S8 | 008 e g€ £0rsd woRelg dumg
Ude 107R13U30)
0 0§ g6l | owdoid | T | AROD | VN ¥ WN v v | YN RTINS | RHOETENDS | O-70Sd | #vonmg dumg
ey
0 0¢ 6L61 L YN | VN 9 oAd 0501 L T 081 PPOO] | ARTINNG | AF20880 | Z0-Sd | I venems dumg
NPk ) (m)
A Mpsi) | aeay fepagery | () pdney Jaquny
jas PRy | MY | eoy | emg dH | HOL | 14O adsip SSUPPY # ISy amey
pojpadxy | paqesu menndio] | ulemadiof JeLiag
Sunmewmsy i

SLISSY NOILVIS dItnd



aAgaRduy $T wollr
0 4 $861 55201 08iTp OF-INNp 10-dSY¥-0dd e AINOd IDANTS NELLTY
0 02 $861 sw301d 1843t 9d-LNNb 10-dSY¥-0¥d I= G0 FIOANTS NELLTE
0 4 sR201d 2d-¥IN 2 I NI T HONOIT GINDN
0 o7 s201d Y-d-4TN Y dI¥nd NINIFE $0101T QRN
0 0T $861 5523014 X 4 04 LNNE £GrdSY¥-O¥d £= dINd 3DANTS NEALRE
0 z 661 ] JYE-b0§ Y QE\-T0-dSYY-OUd Qi) dvnd SYY
0 4 661 §532014 J¥E-b0S SY AL\ 10rdSYH-0¥d QL) N SV
0 4 661 3014 LY E-405 I¥ QE\-£0-dSYE-0¥d QL) @Ned S¥E
ot 0§ 661 ssa301d S0MNYL-g3S-INT = MNV1 3OY1d3S
ol 0s 6:61 533014 10NV L-GES-dN I= ¥NVI 3OVidIs
o1 0§ 6161 83014 £0-3INY1-¥3Y £ ANVL NOLLY NIV
01 0§ 661 $301E T0SINYL-¥EY = MNVI NOLLV AV
01 0§ 6161 §0201d I0-ANYI-E3Y {= }NYL NOLLYSIY
01 0§ 6.61 3014 T0UN¥I-02-0%d ANV 2= YIRRIY IO ¥V TN
o1 0§ 661 93014 10-MNY1-09-09d ANYL (= YIERIVID VTIOED
91 0§ 6.61 553014 SUNYL IOVINOD INRIOTHD
0 ot 000Z mRnguy TT5908065 £H VEHSOL Q44-50-d-INI £0-d-ANI HO4 Ly
0 ot 1002 Wy 96520501 £H VEIHSOL QLN-10d-INT 10-d-4NI ¥04 @y
0 0z WeNE 6€101 0010SCESD dor-d-393 TINYd TOYINOD GNd ININTIIE
0 14 g +86¢1 = 80f drd-aa TINYd TOUINOD dINQE INEATIN
0 0z §861 NG 86510218 Hazirsa JISKIO-LY¥IHES INVTd INTULYREE YOIVHANTD
0 (4 $861 SmipoTH piios 007N VLI S0 SYD 20-ddg-HS = SSTYD WELMA 1739
0 0T §861 amipeEy pos 661-N YILI$'0 SO 10-d3g-HS i= SSTIE WELTH 17139
0 07 $861 53014 1-57106 SEO\IEH 79-20-0¥d SINSINYHOTIN = ¥ILINIYI0 ¥V INJED
0 0 §861 520013 1-57105 $93.\49H 10-20-0¥é SINSINVHODN 1= YILRIVT) AV A0
N WmT (uwax) g
JR3X UONEPWISH] | JMIPIDGUOURIOT | squnN RIS nquiay [Fpojx Hquany ywwduby amey; Jassy / nsmdinby
1yasq Surmeway | RISy paRNdxg
SLASSY LMW

- T19VL




BagIRNg e oiut
05 L6t st IR OISRy ot R e SITHNS TITHINS
5 08 161 b 4 WY SOIGTY ol Ausg AL DUHNS B IFHING |
b 0§ 1861 #7v 1T S0lSAgSY $ 2usg Aoy £3THING . T-HINS
§ 03 b:61 -0t 1V SOI5Ra5Y I g ALiesy (0T-HINS SOT-HINS
§ 0§ £.61 il ORI SOLRGSY | g e SST-HINS 00T-HINS
§ 03 v261 sit 1R TOIS9QTY ot faueg Quesy 52 1-HINS 9L 1-30XS
g 03 361 €1l 10323 SO 8 g ey EBT-HINS $STHINS |
Y 0s r:61 w8 TR OIGEY It g e $5T-HINS 9ST-HINS
§ 0¢ b6l €8t WY TOAGTY U g dnels SOTHNS HITHINS
§ 0§ vifl 1€ WD) SOISRYRY A Ruag gy 981-HONS 6S1-HINS
§ 08 b6l b | VTR SOIRLEY H anag ALy ET-HINS €50-HINS
g 03 b6l oz URERG SORLY 3 RS g SS1-HINS +61-HINS
§ 03 #.61 8¢ TRWRY SOIS35Y A Awag Ane :81-HINS 9S1-HINS
§ 6§ £:61 53t 1T SOIRYSY It s Qe T81-HINE ™. GIHINS
§ 08 ri6l we W 5015337V | Ruag Lnug 655-HINS SSIHINS
§ g p61 pic 1ZIWET TOISALTY s RS ANRH SET-HINS TUEHINS
5 05 r261 191 1A S0ISTY $ g QL TTHINS £LIHINS
§ 03 £:61 §5¢ 19T OISV ot AL ) SI-HINS 3L IHINS
§ 0§ pi6l #81 TR SOV Tt g g [§1-HONS S1-HINS
§ 0s #1681 9: W) SOISILTY | wag fuels CB3-HONS 181008
g 6§ ri6l M IR SOISRTY u auag Duey S3I-HINS 0S1-30NS
§ 03 L6t £ IBIRRZ SOISY I auag Quaesy $ET-HING SSTHINS
g 03 i1 0T WD SOIRLY 01 g ey ET-HIRS 195-HINS
$ 05 v.61 b1 URGR SOIRYTY ol sauag Qnesg I-HINS PETHINS
§ 08 £:61 o8¢ ARG SOIS3SY tt g Gep £3HINS SSI-HINS
3 65 p:61 b0% W) S0lsEY i snag Aneg LST-HONS SSUHINS
$ 05 £i61 3K 12907 SOIERGEY | Avag Juesy SET-HINS TATHINS
g 03 k261 T ITRY S0ISTY o auag Aued T.THINS FETHING
g 05 £:61 86¢ IR TOIRYTY )] g Qnesd SET-HINS EETHINS
§ 0§ v:61 578 WA SIS ot fusg Queo EP5-HONS 655-HINS
(sam9%) (seax)
I a— S —— Av( wonsysIsuy (19 pawy Teuneyy adig wmeadig s 1 a1 yuamias




lende) 41 Mm Jodijungauusyy jo UMo |

*sda3s IXaN.,

‘pLq 031 IN0 padeld pue paloauLsus usisap syoaloud asoy)y aAeH e

"S54} 1eo13LID
1SOW 9yl YiM Suilaels pajajduwiod aq 03 s3dafoud uo aploa( «
(*spunj 9AJ9S3J pue pung SULAJOAY 93e)S
JO uoljeulquwio)) "WoJdj awod 03 SL Sulpuny ayj 94aym pue potiad
9] ULR1IDD B UL ISSAUL 0] JUueM aM Op Asuow yonuw Moy ap1ia( «

‘sopelddn asay) sura)dwod
pue SuLpunj JO SW.I9] UL 9q 0] JUBM NOA DALSSD.U88R MOY ap1da( «



jeuded 4l mMm 1odjungauusy Jo Umo |

“‘suoljelapisuo),,

"S)e0s asay] Jasw
03 SYJOM 211gNd JO BULINIDNIISDI 19YlIN) JOPISUOD OM PINOUS «

*s309lo.ud ayj a8euew 0]

Alllge ayj pue ‘sawe.) awiL) Jeuoljelado/jeuoseas ‘awl) pea)

sulinjdejnuew 03 anp awil) JO Junowe ulelad e ul paya)dwod
9 Ued YJ0oM yonuw 0s Ajuo ‘Sulpuny ajenbape Yiim USAT .

"AWIOU0D3 9Y3 pue JUSWUOIIAUD 3Y] ‘Saun)le)
19sse/juawdinba pajdadxaun uo paseq asueyd ued Sa1LIOLI «

:19AMOY
‘sjuswianoadwl asayy Sutystjdwodde 03 juelioduwil st Sulpund .



1elide) dIMM HodyunNgauusy| Jo UMOo .

“*suoljelapisuo),

*$S9J0NS
UM 10L1SIJ JOMaS ySnoaogaeds pue 10L13sLq Aleltues s)1om
1211351 JOMaS Yungauuayf e pasn Sulaq Apeadje st |9powl SIY] e

*199U18UD Jeuolssajoud
e UlIM Jojesad( Jueld Juawieal] ja1y) ayj suldejdad Ag SHIOM
J11gngd SuLinionulsad Japisuod 01 Ajtunlioddo ue sjuasaud Siy] «

‘pauslsal sey
JojeladQ jueld juswieal] JaLy) JOIBMIISEM JNO ‘MOUY NOA SY .



jeide) d1 MM 3od3UNGaUUSY 4O UMD |

“'sjyauag,,

"10149 SS9 Yum s3oaloud
9)9]dwod pue $1502 uoLjellSLtuLlpe UoL}dNIISUOD SDNPSY e

"seale Jayjo ulL AdualdLy)a/aoueieq sSulpiAroad piemo] YIom 03

W} alow aAey Joldallq Aindsg pue 1031d3a41qg 9y3 os syoaloud

paJasaulsua pue swelgo.ad urellad Jo juswageuew pue 931SI9A0
‘sutuueld Joj JJe1s Uo 19auLSuUD Jeuolssao.ad e SOPIAOI] e

‘suolilisod JojeladQ
jueld juswieal] jaly) pue Joldallq Aihdsg syl usamiaq
Juasaud salljiqisuodsal Juepunpal awos Yim Aeme oq



Jeider) di MM Hodyungauusyy 40 Umo |

Jsuolysan)

iAWIL 4NOA ¥04 NOA MNVHL




WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND
TREATMNET SYSTEM

FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY PLAN REPORT

for
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT

JUNE 2019

WRIGHT-PIERCE =

Engineering a Better Environment




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ES.1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to document the Town of Kennebunkport’s Wastewater Department
Fiscal Sustainability Plan (FSP), which includes an inventory of critical wastewater treatment and
collection system assets (Section 2), the Town’s approach to determining asset criticality (Section
3) and a cost-effective funding plan to proactively fund repair, rehabilitation or replacement of the
most critical assets (Section 4). The FSP will provide a framework to help the Town proactively

manage its wastewater assets over the short (5 years) and long term (10-20 years) planning horizon.
ES.2 CRITICALITY ANALYSIS

Key performance criteria were selected by the FSP Team to determine criticality. The performance
criteria are grouped into two broad categories, Likelihood of failure (LoF) criteria and

consequences of failure (CoF) criteria.

Table ES-1 summarizes the selected performance criteria for the criticality analysis.

TABLE ES-1
SELECTED CRITICALITY ANALYSIS PERFORMANCE CRITERIA
LoF Criteria Age Remaining Useful Life
Condition Relative Condition of Existing Asset
Material Pipe Material (Sewers Only)
CoF Criteria Economic Costs Operational Significance/Size
Redundancy (WWTF & PS Only)
Availability of Spare Parts (WWTF & PS Only)
Social Costs Waterfront Properties
Important Local Users
Beaches

Environmental Costs Critical Plant/Animal Habitat
Wetlands & Waterbodies

14227A ES-1 Wright-Pierce



The LoF and CoF criteria were each assigned a weighting factor by the FSP team to align with the
Town of Kennebunkport’s level of service goals. The performance criteria scores were multiplied

by the corresponding weighting factors and then summed to determine the total criticality score.

Table ES-2 summarizes the weighting factors for the performance criteria.

TABLE ES-2
PERFORMANCE CRITERIA WEIGHTING FACTORS
Remaining Useful Life 50%
Relative Condition of Existing Asset 50%
Operational Significance/Size 75%
Redundancy 20%
Auvailability of Spare Parts 5%
Waterfront Properties 25%
Important Local Users 50%
Beaches 25%
Critical Plant/Animal Habitat 15%
Wetlands & Waterbodies 15%

Assets were assigned a priority based on their criticality score. Table ES-3 includes the priority

thresholds for high, medium and low priority assets.

TABLE ES-3
PRIORITY THRESHOLDS
RISK ANALYSIS SCORE PRIORITY
>22.00 High
12.00-22.00 Medium
<12.00 Low

14227A ES-2 Wright-Pierce



ES.3 ASSET RENEWAL TIMETABLES

Asset renewal timetables were developed based on priority and the feasibility of completing the

renewal work affordably within the timetable. Table ES-4 summarizes the asset renewal timetable

for high prioirty WWTF and pump stations assets. Figure ES-1 shows the the high priority sewer

assets recommended for renewal in the 0-5 year timetable highlighted in red.

TABLE ES-4
RENEWAL TIMETABLES FOR HIGH PRIORITY WWTF & PUMP STATION
ASSETS
RANK DESCRIPTION RENEWAL TIMETABLE
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY
1 CIRCULAR CLARIFIER #1 MECHANISMS 0-5 YEARS
2 CIRCULAR CLARIFIER #2 MECHANISMS 0-5 YEARS
3 CLAR. DRIVE MOTOR #1 0-5 YEARS
4 CLAR. DRIVE MOTOR #2 0-5 YEARS
5 CLARIFIER DRIVE REDUCER #1 0-5 YEARS
6 CLARIFIER DRIVE REDUCER #2 0-5 YEARS
7 BELT FILTER PRESS #1 0-5 YEARS
8 BELT FILTER PRESS #2 0-5 YEARS
9 GENERATOR: TREATMENT PLANT 0-5 YEARS
10 INFLUENT PUMP CONTROL PANEL 6-10 YEARS
11 EFFLUENT PUMP CONTROL PANEL 6-10 YEARS
12 VFD FOR INF-P-01 6-10 YEARS
13 VFD FOR INF-P-03 6-10 YEARS
PUMP STATIONS

1 OCEAN AVENUE PUMP STATION 0-5 YEARS
2 WILDES DISTRICT ROAD PS GENERATOR 0-5 YEARS
3 WILDES DISTRICT ROAD PUMP STATION 0-5 YEARS
4 TURBATS CREEK PS GENERATOR 6-10 YEARS

14227A

ES-3

‘Wright-Pierce




[ p—"

unold | T~ wUﬁm-n—u.-._.-U-y_g $18MBG AJUONY YBIH e

610Z/6T/v | _ LZZYl LB JOMOS e
-diva COM (Okd

A Wodjunqauuay

waysAs 1amas

s|emauay 1amas Ajaoyd YSjH Jesp §-0

ajoyuepy IeMeg o
1MW HiNw

s0 s2'0 0 \
1

pue o

40} AJuo pepuei] 5i puB *SjeIASIe IO
eyBjdwos eq jou Asuw "Saanos SNOEWINU WAl
papduies s deu sfg) U0 UNOYS UQRBLLIOJL]

“61L0Z ‘eeld-ybum Aq pedojensq dei
‘6102 "Mebaw) puon RIS3

‘8ZE0RLOZ ‘(NNTYd DLTOEZ) MunoD HOA 10} NI VINGd Alsupuiield
*SIO Jo 83O sulBN

YOIBWID a8 /221

PXWT-£ | XL L~ A-BIBMBLI2 18,

'810Z ‘3N "HodyuRgeuuay jo umal ; siskieny pue Buddew sio

7SIV HvL

U




ES.4 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

In most circumstances, determining whether asset repair/rehabilitation is cost-effective in
comparison to complete in-kind replacement requires considerations of up-front capital cost,
annual operations and maintenance (O&M) costs, and asset salvage value as well as the remaining
expected useful life of the asset after rehabilitation and the expected useful life of a new unit. The
Town is encouraged to review rehabilitation versus replacement options on a case-by-case basis
as each asset is considered for renewal, when feasible. The costs presented in the asset inventory
are planning-level estimates for in-kind replacement of the existing wastewater system assets.
Sewer replacement costs are based on open-cut trench excavation construction methods to be
conservative. Sewer relining may be feasible in some areas and should be reviewed during

preliminary design.

The FSP scope did not include evaluating alternative treatment/collection technologies, increasing

asset redundancy or expanding system capacity.

Table ES-5 summarizes the wastewater system replacement cost needs by timetable over the next

20 years.

TABLE ES-5
WWTF 20-YEAR REPLACEMENT COST SUMMARY?

Asset Description 0-5 Years 6-10 Years 11-15 Years | 16-20 Years | Asset Totals

WWTF $1,580,000 $110,000 $3,965,000 $3,068,000 $8,723,000

Pump Station $785,000 $435,000 $950,000 $2,140,000 $4,310,000

Collection System $3,620,000 $5,093,000 $5,775,000 $3,405,000 $17,893,000

Timetable Subtotals | $5,985,000 $5,638,000 $10,690,000 $8,613,000 --

GRAND TOTAL -- - - -- : $30,9;2:6,000 !

1. Replacement costs do not include field surveys, engineering, construction management, and contingency costs

14227A ES-5 Wright-Pierce



Table ES-6 represents a proposed five-year capital improvement plan for high priority assets
recommended for renewal in the zero to five-year timetable. Similar assets have been grouped into
capital improvement projects for convenience of construction activities. Funding sources for the
capital improvement projects have been assumed for budgeting purposes. The Town of
Kennebunkport is encouraged to explore all available funding options discussed in Section 4.4,

Potential Capital Funding Sources.

The annual costs for each fiscal year in Table ES-6 represent the equivalent annual debt service
cost to finance each capital project. An annual interest rate of 1.5% for SRF loan funding was used

to determine the equivalent annual debt service cost.

The project costs in Table ES-5 included a 40% conceptual-level project factor to account for field

surveys, engineering, construction management, and contingency.

14227A ES-6 Wright-Pierce



224 IYBUM. L-S3 ViTivl
-10jes0ua8 Aouadiows Aq-pues pue uonels dund ay) Jo Juawoorjdal sspnjout joafoid uonelg dumg peoy OIS SSPIIM €
‘uBisap Areuruijaid SULNp pamaiaol aq pinoys AN[IqISea) SULUI[a 19M3S "SALEAISSU02 3q O sonbruysa} UONOIISUOD UCHBABOXS DUSI) Ino-Uado Julsn pojeull)ss Uoq JAEY SJS0d yoloid ;omag 7
‘soseyd uSisop [euy pue Aeunuyaid Supnp pajepdn aq pnoys 51505 103014 “UOHEBIFUT 10§ JUNOIOE JOU OP PUE SIB{[OP (610Z Aep) Juosoxd Uy ase sajewrnsa 3500 joofond [
(€86°18¥S) (OBT'¥EVS) (9€L'TSES) (LT 9EES) (08T‘1p%) - 000°66L'LS TVLOL ANVHD
(90°Z10°F9%) (18°80€°91%) (I8'80E°91%) - - - 000°660°TS AVLOLLNS
SNOILV.LS
(9z°coL'LrS) - - - - NVOT £48 YVHA-0T 000°618$ {NOLLV.LS diNfd VOY LONILSIA SHATIM aN0d
(18'80€91%) (18'80€918) (18'80€'91$) - - NVOT 248 dVdA-0C 000'082§ NOILLV.LS dWNd ANNAAY NVd30
(8¥2'S678$) (8¥2°562S) (8Y2'5678) (8¥T'5618) = - 000°€65'PS 1V.L0.L40S
(STL°LTS) (s2L°L28) (szL'LT$) (szL°Les) - NVO1 SIS UVEA-0T 000'9L¥$ SUAMAS HOVAML SAD0AIS00D
o SYAMES VaY LS TOOHOS
(089°6.8) (089'649) (089°6.3) (089'6L9) - NVO'T S dVIA-0T 000°89€'1$ WIALSAS
% NIV 3001 ININTAIH ALAM
NOLLDATIOOD
SYIMAS VARV "1S ANIVIN
(586'2v$) (586°7v$) (536'7v$) (586°Tv8) - NVOT 44§ 4VAA-0Z 000'3€L$
¥ NIVW 32404 ¢# Sd
(Ls8'vy1$) (LS8'PP1S) (Lsg'vpis) (LS8'PPI$) - NVOT 488 ¥VHA-0Z 000'L8+°C8 SUAMAIS VIRV AINIAY NVEDO
P2L'TTs) (rzL'z218) (081°TH$) 081°1p$) (081°1p3) - 000°£01°'CS TVL0L4NS
0LTPIS) 0LT'71$) 0LT'vI$) (oLT'rIs) oLTvIs) NVOT S dVAA-0T 000'517$ INVTd INFWLVEYL “OLVYENAD ALITIDVA
(rrS'188) (rps°188) NVO'T S 4VEA-0T 000'00+°1$ TH® 1# SSTId WALIA L1498 | INTFWLVIYL
(ssv'e1s) (SSrELS) (SSP'EIS) (ss¥'EI8) (sst'€Ls) NVOT IS YVAA-0T 000'1£28 Z# WA VIO WYINouID | HILVAMALSVAL
(SS'€18) (sst'€18) (Ssy'E1s) (ssp'elg) (SS¥°E18) NVOT .48 AVEA-0T 000°1€78 1# YA VIO 9VIN0EID
YTAd €TXA (4.9 | TTA4 0ZA4 HOYNOS ONIANNA #LS0D LOArodd NOLLAIIOSHA LOAFOUd

NVId INANTAQUAII TVLIAVD dVIA-S

9-SH ATAVL



SECTION 1
INTRODUCTION

1.1  PURPOSE

In June of 2017, the Town of Kennebunkport (Town) applied to receive a $15,000 State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan (with 100% principal forgiveness) from the Maine Department of Environmental
Protection (Maine DEP) with a 50% match from the Town to create a Fiscal Sustainability Plan
(FSP) for the Town’s Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) and sewer collection system assets.
The loan agreement was finalized in February 2018. The purpose of this report is to document the
Town’s Wastewater Department FSP including an inventory of critical wastewater treatment and
collection system assets (Figure 1), the Town’s approach to determining asset criticality and a cost-
effective funding plan to proactively fund repair, rehabilitation or replacement of the most critical
assets. The FSP will provide a framework to help the Town proactively manage its wastewater
assets over the short (5 years) and long term (10-20 years) planning horizon. The Town has
retained Wright-Pierce to assist with the compiling the inventory of assets, assist with determining
assets criticality and creating a funding plan for critical assets that will align with the Town’s

overall financial obligations.

1.2  FSP TEAM

The FSP team is the group of individuals who will be responsible for creating the framework of
the Wastewater Department’s fiscal sustainability program. This group typically consists of
stakeholders who will have a direct impact on the direction of the fiscal sustainability program and
will be responsible for the maintenance of the FSP over the planning period. The Town’s FSP team

consists of;

¢ Town Manager

¢ Director of Public Works

¢ Deputy Director of Public Works

¢ Wastewater Treatment Facility Chief Operator

14227A 1-1 Wright-Pierce



o Wastewater Department Operations staff
e Town financial and administrative support staff

o Consultant staff (as needed)

The Town’s FSP team will be responsible for drafting the initial FSP and meeting periodically to
update the FSP as needed during the planning period.

1.3  BASIS OF REPORT AND EXISTING INFORMATION

The FSP Report was based on readily available information for the existing wastewater collection

and treatment system assets including:

o Existing wastewater system asset inventory data

¢ Existing electronic geographic information system (GIS) data and maps

o Existing record drawings, manufacturer cuts sheets and construction photos
¢ WWTF and pump station O&M manuals

e Interviews with Wastewater Department operations and maintenance staff

¢ Discussions with Town Manager and Wastewater Department administrative staff.

1.4 WATER AND ENERGY CONSERVATION CONSIDERATIONS

The Town strives to be a community leader in sustainability and has therefore adopted a
philosophy of providing public services to the residents of Kennebunkport that matches its
sustajnability goals. As public facilities are renewed or updated, the Town has consistently opted
to make cost-effective water and energy efficiency improvements. The Wastewater Department in
particular has actively pursued cost-effective water and energy efficiency improvements when
planning asset renewal and replacement projects. Energy efficiency considerations have included
consistently installing more energy efficient pumps, blowers and other mechanical equipment as
existing assets fail or reach the end of their useful life, adding variable frequency drives (VFDs)
and programmable logic controllers (PLCs) to optimize equipment performance and reduce

unnecessary power and chemical consumption and opting for propane fuel instead of diesel fuel

14227A 1-2 Wright-Pierce



for emergency back-up power generators at pump stations as they are upgraded. The Town also
takes into consideration process equipment water consumption as a factor in selecting new
equipment and as part of facility renewal projects including pumps with no or reduced seal water
requirements, water-conserving restroom and laboratory fixtures and reuse of WWTF effluent
water for operations and maintenance tasks that can be safely accomplished with a non-potable

water source.

The Wastewater Department will continue to carry these practices forward during the FSP

planning process and the selection of equipment as part of asset renewal and other capital projects.

14227A 1-3 Wright-Pierce



SECTION 2
ASSET INVENTORY

2.1  WWTF ASSETS

Table 2-1 provides inventory for the Kennebunkport WWTF assets including identification
information, asset type, model number, serial number, location/associated unit process, installation

date, expected useful life, and estimated remaining useful life.

14227A 2-4 Wright-Pierce



ou..o_&lé._»ta (4 \{¥#x44

0 0T €861 §52001] 08LTY O4-LNNV 20-dSVU-OUd T# JNNd IDANTS NANLTA

0 0z §861 $S300.1g 18LZy DA-LNNV 10-dSVY-0Odd 1# dNNd IOANTS NAIAL3A

0 0T §530014 O-ddIN D dANd NANLTY 40NOI'T IXIN

0 0T S520014 V-d-41TN V¥ dJANd NANLAY 90N01T GIXTN

0 02 £861 §89001d T8LTY DJ-LNNY £0-dSVI-0Odd £# JANNd IOANTS NANLTI

0 0z ¥661 $833014 LVEPOS AV A4A-TO-dSVU-OUd ddA dNNd SV

0 0t P66 §83001d LVE-POS AV AdA-10-dSVH-0dd ddA dNNd SV

0 0T 661 §sas01g LVEPOS IV AIA-£0-dSVE-Odd adA JANd SVH
01 0§ 6L61 §sa0014 - ZO-ANV.L-ddS-dNI - _ T#ANVL IOVLLIS
0l 0s 6L61 §83%014 J0-ANVL-ddS-4NI [# ANVL IOV LIS

1) 0s 6L61 §52201d 0 ANV.LUIY £# INVL NOILLVIAY ]
0t 0¢ 6L61 §sa001d 20 2INVL-43V Z# JINV.L NOLLVITY

01 0s 6L61 8530014 10-ANVLIIV I# ANV.L NOILYHIV

0l 0S 6L61 §890014 ZOANV.L-DJ-0dd 2INV.L Z# HALARV I 4V 1024910

01 0s 6L61 §53201g 10-2INV.L-20-0¥d JANVL [# AIATEVID MV INOHIO

)] 0S 6L61 §5a0014 SANV.L LOV.INOD ANTHOTHD

0 1]} 000T juanjjuy TTE908066 £H VHIHSOL AAA-€0-d-ANI £0-d~ANI JOd ddA

0 4] 100T juanjjug 9657001 £H VHEIHSOL A4A-10-d-dNI 10-d-ANI 404 AdA

0 0Z juanyyyy 6€101 0010504980 dJ-d-d43 TANVd TOULNCD dWNd INHNTIddd

0 0z juanjjug P86ST # HOI d3~d-dINI TANVd TOULNOD JANd LNHNTINI

Y 0z €861 i) 86S10Z18 LIazived LASNAD-LVDI-43S INVId INHFNLVHIL FOLVYANAD

0 0z $861 Juipuey pijog 00Z-NN UALIN §°0 SHO 20-dA9-HS T# SSHYUd WAL 17396

0 0T $861 Jupuey pijog 661-NN HILIN $°0 SUD 10-d44-HS [# SSTAd Y4.L'1id 1194

0 0z S861 §530014 [-6T106 SIIAYEH 20-00-0ud SIWSINYHOAW Z# dHIHTIV 1D dVINDII0
0 0z §861 5539044 1-5T106 SIOAUEH 10-00-0dd SWSINVHIOIW 1# dF1419V10 4V I110dD

(ax) a1 (samag) ayry
mpsy Supupeuiay | pngesy paysadiy 183X uOnu[[BISU] | SwIpING/ONEIOT | JIQUINN [ELIRS Jaquiny] PO Jaquiny] Juawdimby awEy Jossy / Jowdmby

SLASSY 41MMm
I-7479vL




adsag-Iqdum

VLTl

0t 0l 6102 juanjjuj 0£5€08 fH VAIHSOL dAA-TO-d-ANI 20~d-dAN] 904 ddA

9 0T $00Z §520014 PE160H CA/NNOTS 70-d-OdAH-Odd dANNd OdAH

9 0Z €00T $530014 1021609 TA/NNOTS 10-d-OdAH-Odd dWNd OdAH

S 0T 00T e | P60LT grOTI0AdSFONN 70~dSYM-Odd T# dNNd ADJNTS ALSVM
S 0z 00T §820014 £60L1 a0 T110AdSPONN 10-dSVAM-OXd T# AN 9900718 HLSVAM
9 0Z €00T Surpuey pijog 99€6918 VdAWDVD £0~-MTd-HS C# JIMOTE 90 IS

9 0z $00T Suipuey PHOS 0E£ESBIS YdANDVD T0-MTd-HS Z# 4IMOTd 9IS

9 0T $00Z Suipuel] prog 8CESBIS dNy VJdAQWOVO 10~-MTd-HS 1# 44MO1d H5aNTS
Z1 0z 110T juan|jup TO-dIS-NA-dNI SNATYOIS ANIL INTNTANI T#
4! 0z 1102 usnjzug 10-4238-NA-1ANI SNATIOS NI INANTANI i#
0 414 $861 Surjpuey pHos 0£95S1 H0TIN 70-d4d-HS 7# JNNd 334 YHAKXTOd
0 0t $861 Suijpuey] piog 679551 H0TIN 10-d4d-HS 1# dNOd AI31 YIWATOd

0 0z $861 juanppul 2059£96118 1018 TO-XIW-ddS-ANI TH MIXTN DILdES

0 0T G861 juanjjuj 10S9£961¥8 1018 10-XTN-ddS-dNI 1# YEXTA DLLJAS

0 0T S861 jusnyuy 20-090LL SAO St# 20~d-ddS-INI 7 JNNd HOVIdAS

0 0z §861 juanyjuy 10-090LL SAO Sv# 10-d-ddS-ANI 1# dN(Nd 3DV.LdHS

1 SI $00T §52001d P0T160d TA/NNOTS 20~-d-INSIH-0dd dINNd JJIITINSTE

[ S1 S00T §532014 10216049 TA/NNOTS 10-d~1N819-0dd dNNd HLIATNSIE

0 of 000T 2AISS B08SS6L HSELME JASNHO-LIOd-4gS IVIEINTD YOLVIANAD H19V.LI0d
0 0T G861 Sug[puey pI[og 0L¥R61 S 181-HI ANOD-HS JOAHANOD FDANTS

0 0T S861 §89001d 10#9¢961 78 1018 ATXTW-HSV'14-081d UAXIN HSVTA TIO

0 0T $59001J AIA-Z0-MTH-0dd T# 4IM0Td NO ddA

0 0T $52001g O-XIN-XONV 0 HAXIW OIXONV

0 0T §82201d V-XIN-XONV V 4IXIN JIXONY

0 01 §530014 AJA-€0-MT1d-0dd AdA €4 dIMOTd NOLLVIEY
0 01 $§32014 AJA-10-MTH-0Odd A4A 1# 33M0T9 NOLLVYHY
0 0z $8300J ] TLEET-S0V AIA-V0-MTH-OUd P JHMOTE NO ddA

(X)) a1 (s38a)) apy
SRR | T —— 183X uonejeisu] | Suippng/uonerey Jaqump] jsuIag Jaquimy PPON Jaquiny juamdynbyg awe)] a8y / Judwdmby




myasn) Sunnsway

njas() pazdadxy

3213 3qBm LT vLiTivi
JOLOAIAA
0 01 661 Ajpyeg SLI-SOI1016 1LZXIWH 20-LAASVO-IS SVO DIHILNAIDS TVRILSNANI
0 0T ) $£9114dS 969¢ SA'MNOD 10-d-Md-ddS 1# dJNNd YHLVM LNV 1d
0 0T §861 MAIBS 617013 JH/NVO0I9D T0-d-MdddS T # dANd YILVAM LNVId
(44 0¢ 1102 yuanyjup ONIATING ONINTTADS
0 0l 9661 aojA1ag PZ811-6609T §§°T1-HD YA THONA H-dJWOD-LIOd-UIS "dN0D L30Qd NO INIONA ddTHOA
0 0T €861 et ™ v00¢-4d 09-88 dO-d-Md-dHS TANVd TOHLINOD'SAS dd1vM LNVTd
Ll %4 1102 §530014 ANa-4IV SYFSNAIIA NOLLY I3V
0T 0T 610T juenfju] 901LY8 ovyds €0-d-INI E#dINNd ININTANI
0T 0T 6102 juanjju] VOTL8 0rag 10-d-dNI [#dNNd LNANTANI
0T 0T 610T juangyuy SOILP8 ovas ¢0-d-dNI T# dNNd LNANTINT
0T 0z 6102 jusniiyd POP10-18 £0-d-Ad4 £# dJNNd ININTIAd
0z 0t 6107 juaniyyq SOr10-¥8 20~-d-444 # dNNd ININTLIH
0T 0T 6102 juaniyyq S0P 10-¥8 10-d-d49 1# dNNd INTNTAI9
| 61 0z 810T §83201d P0-M19-Odd P HIMOTI 'SAS NOLLVIIY
61 0T 8107 §532014 £0-MT14-Odd £# YJIM 014 "'SAS NOLLVIAY
61 0c 8102 §890014 20-M19-Odd 1 4IMOTE "SAS NOLLVIIY
61 0T 810C §832014 [0-m19-0dd 1# 4AMOTE 'SAS NOLLVEEY
0 S 00T Aiojeroqe] 100P0£2T6 0lLE 0 dTTdINVS-aVT YATdNVYS AALVIIDANIITT OOSI
0 S 00T Asoreroqe] 900+0£T6 0lLg 10-4ITdNVS-aVv1 HATIAVS ALV IZOARIIT O8I
01 0s 6L61 3uipiing 1s0dwo)y DNIQTING ONILSOdNOD
01 0s 6L61 Suipuey pijog ONIQHNM ONI'IANVH SAI'TOS
S 0¢ rL61 8590014 ONIQTING TOYLNOD §§3004dd
S 0s bi6l Suipiing unupy ADOVIVO/ONIATING NINAY
0 0l 00T Juipping 1s0dwo) | 98EP6SLIPYPMA | MATNAVD TOOL (bt AHAAT-Af-dWOD FAAVOT TIFIA NHOL
¢ 0¢ 00T §83001d €115 9®HD d-NNDS-0dd dINNd WNOS
QXx) an1 (s183X) 3y
I3 X uonefessu] | Surppng/uopesey Jaquinyj jeusg Jquiny [PpoAl Jaquinp jusudinby awsy] Jassy ; Judwdimby




AING- YA

8T

Vitivl

4 0T £00T 201AIg 0L0P00E OPET I S0-dNOD-¥HS MOSSTIINOD MV HHS
SNOVET
0 01 £00T 2314198 £2109080€ ANVH-TOSYIONI $0-dWOD-94S i JOSSTIINOD IV
0 0z 8661 a01A108 SEPOEL STU 8-SUA £0-dNOD-¥HS £ HOSSTIdNOD MY
z "ddS d4LSI'T
0 01 9661 32IA198 6516141961050 | -VP9SAS-HIIV-AdddS | dWOD-1¥0d-4dS ANIONTAIOSSTAJNOD 19V.LIOd
(dA) a1 (s18ax) apT
T ——— T Ieax uope(eisu] | SuIpng;UOPEd0TY Iaqump] [eUR§ JdquInN] [PPOIAI raquiny] yudeudmby awre) jassy / puamsdmmby




2.2 SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM ASSETS

Table 2-2 provides an inventory of the Kennebunkport sewer system pipelines including the asset
identification information, asset type, size, installation date, construction material, approximate
length, installation date, expected useful life, and remaining useful life. Table 2-3 provides an
inventory of the pump stations and stand-by generators including asset identification information,
serial number, location, capacity information, fuel type, installation date, expected useful life and

remaining useful life.

14227A 2-9 Wright-Pierce



221914398 01-C \Zx74 4!

s 0s pLET 101 JuAWa)) S01S3qSY 01 1amag AaeiD 6SS-HINS 8SS-HWS

s 05 pL61 66 JUBLAY) $S0JSIQSY o1 10M9§ MIABID 8SS-HINS LSS-HINS

S 0§ vL61 1€ Juawa)) sOISISY ot Iomag Aiaein LSS-HINS 9SS-HINS

S 0s vL6] 144 JuaMma) S0ISqSY 0t Jamag Aiaeln LET-HNS 6£T-HINS

$ 0s rL6L 68 AW S0IS3GSY o1 Jomag AaeiD 9ET-HNS LET-HNS
[44 0§ 1661 $91 apuopy) 1fuakjod 8 Wy 9210 v9-HS vi-Sd
61 0§ 2861 85¢ apuoly) AAL [0 4 ure 2004 vIr-HNS 91-Sd
[44 0§ 1661 vOE apuo[y) JAulAdjod 8 UIE]A] 3040 LOT-HIS S1-8d
61 0s 8861 10€ apuopy) jAutakjod 8 e}y 304 TZE-HNS 2-8d
4 0§ 1861 068 apuo[y) [Autakjod 8 e 33104 91S-HWS 01-Sd
61 0 8861 I8 SpHOYD [AutALlog 4 R[N 92104 66E-HWNS LI-8d
[44 08 1661 8451 apuoy) [Autakiod 14 UIBJA] 32404 £1-8d
[44 0§ 1661 18521 apuopy) JAurakiod 8 ulepy 90104 6vP-HINS ¢1-Sd ]
48 05 1861 1414 apuoy) [Auiak[od 2 Ugey 93104 I97-HWS 11-8d |
4! 058 1861 LI€ apuop) [Autadiog 4 BRI 8310, OLF-HIS 895-HIS
41 0s 1861 86 spHol) Kuiakjod z e 3310] p6-HNS ELP-HIS
4 0§ 1861 LEY apuoy) [Kwakjod 4 U 2010, 17S-HWS 0LS-HNS
ol 05 6L61 ¥9TE apuopy) jAuiakog o1 UIEIA 2210 L9E-HWNS 8-Sd
01 0§ 6L61 P01 apuOY) JAutakiod 3 e 2210 LTP"HNS 6-Sd
41 05 1861 071 ApUOY] JAuiALIOd (4 e 32104 9Ey-HINS pLS-HWS
4 0S 1861 861 apuoy) |Autakod 4 ure 30504 9E-HINS 69S-HAS
41 0s 1861 S681 spuopy [Auiakiod 4 ulepy 32104 LLTHWS 9-8d
ol 0 6L61 L89E spuoy) |Auiakiod 9 ule] 90104 99E-HWS £-Sd
oL 0 6L61 1vel apuo) [AUtAdiod 9 WA 3210 TZTHINS 00-Sd

S 0s L1 ELE susjypadjog 9 B[y 80101 991-HIS £0-Sd

) 0 L6l $9ST adiq uos| ajnong 01 ULBJA] 3210 6L1-HINS d1lMm

S 0s ¥L6I L9 ol ise) 4 ule 30104 10€-HINS §-Sd

S 0s PLEL $927 oy 358 9 UIBJA 3210 6£T-HWS v1-Sd

(s48ax) (s¥83X)
AE( UOPB[[EISUY (14 PBua] TeUNR adig az1g adtg asn (1 yudwmdag
i [nyas() Suyupenray api'y [nyas() pajoadxy
SLASSY WALSAS HAMIS

-Ta14vL



321914 Bm

vizTvl

S 0§ L6 Z8¢ juala] sojseqsy 01 Tamag Ajiaei) ECTHNS TZZ-HWS
S 0§ L6l [444 WBW)) 505398y oI 1amag Alaein T91"HWS vLI-HWS
4} 0 1861 ¥Zz UBWA) SO)SBGSY 8 Jamag Ajaeiny YOT-HWS L9T-HWS
S 0s yL6L L01 juau) §01SGSY 4 Jamag Apaein 00Z-HWS 80Z-HWS
s 0s vLOI fad! WOWS3)) S0ISaqsY 41 1m2g L1ae1) LOT-HINS 00T-HINS
) 0§ rL61 SIE BWIY) 035y 0l Jamag Araei0) SLI"HWS 9L1-HWS
$ 0s vL61 £11 AW $0JSqSY 8 12135 AIaeID £8C-HWS PBZT-HWS
§ 0§ L1 20¢ WUBWE) S03S3qQSY 4! 1mag Aiael) S8T-HIWS 98T-HWS
S 0 B yL61 £81 JuaWwa)) SAISAqSY 4 famag Aaeiny £0THWS PITHNS
3 0s PL6] 12€ BUI)) SOISAGSY [41 1oM3G AARID 981-HWS 681-HWS
S 0§ vL61 44| W) 50153GSY 8 Jomog Auaeln TETHNS €8T°HIS
s 0s ¥L61 0zt WOW)) $0}53GSY 8 1mag Quaein £61"HINS ¥61-HIWS
S 0§ yL6l 6¢ WD) S0ISAqSY 4! 1amag Apaeip L81-HWS 981-HWS
s 0 vLGI 331 WaWa) S0IS3qSY 41 1M3g AARID) Z81-HWS LOT-HWS
s 0§ vL61 (443 WAW) $0J$GSY 4! 10m0g A1ARID 681-HINS 88[-HWS
< 05 PL61 1414 JUSWI]) 50)5AqSY 8 lamag Aiaesn 9SS-HWS [1€-HWNS
S 0§ FLOT 191 JudUIS)) S03SIqSY 8 Jamag Kiaein ZLTHWS ELTHIS
S 0 pLGL 687 JUIWI]) $03SAGSY ol Jomag AjaeI L81-HWS SLI-HWS
S 0s vL6T 8l WaWa)) $0J5qsy zl 1amag Aaeln I18I-HNS Z8I-HWS
S 0§ vL61 9L WIS $0J5aqSY 41 lomoag Aiaeln 031"HWS [81-HINS
§ 0§ vL6L 8zl W) $0JSAYSY 4! Jamag Kjaein 831-HNS 081-HWS
< 0§ rL61 £82 JWBWR)) SOISAqSY 4! lamag Alae1n PETHIWS SET-HWS
§ 08 vL6L 00T JRW) S0J53GSY 01 lomag AiaelD 9ET-HWS [95-HIS
3 0 vLE1 ({24 JUSWA)) S0}83qSY ol 1amag QAL 9LI-HINS 9£T-HNS
S 08 L] 082 AW $0IS3qSY vl Jomag Ajaeiny £LS-HWS S81-HIS
) 0§ pL61 YOE JUIWA]) SOISIGSY 1 Jamag Ayaein 18-HWS SST-HIS
s 0S vL61 [b144 JuBUI]) §0)53qSY 4 13M3g AQIARID £ET-HWS TLT-HWS
$ 08 vL61 L1z WD) S0I5GSY 4 lamag Aaein TLTHWS vET-HINS
S 08 vL6L 86T JUAW) SOJSAYSY 4! Jomag Aaeiny 8ET-HNS £ET-HIWS
S 0 pL61 625 1USWIAY) SO)SAQSY 01 Iamag ALaein 195-HWS 655-HNS
$IB2
=g = 3 uopejEISU] (L) wauag [euNEpY] adig azg adid asn) ayuswsag

251 INJ38() Swurwuiay

Y [njas() paroadxsy




s IUBLAM

4K

A g%x#44

S [y rL61 £9¢ JudlR)) $0153qsY 8 13mag AjIABID S61-HWS LIZT-HWS
S 0s PL61 £iT JUIWRY) SOISISY 8 Iamag Araeln T6C-HWS €1E-HWS
S 0§ L6 174} JuaWa)) 50IS3QSY 8 lomag Ajaein 807T-HWS [1Z-HWS
[4 0¢ 161 112 U] S0ISAQSY 0l 1amag AlaeID 6£¢-HINS Ly€-HNS
[4 0§ 1L61 LIE JUdWRD SOISAgSY or 19Mmag AraeIn THINS 6£€-HINS
[4 0§ 1L61 €67 UBWR) S0JS3GSY o1 10/98 AIARID vrE-HWS CHIS
s 0§ pLEL 0§ JuaWa) 5035GSY 8 Jamag Ajae1n T81-HWS £81-HWS
s 0§ vL61 SOE JUSWIY) 50)53G5Y 8 1omag AlaeIn T61-HIS ZIT-HAS
S 0s PLOT 44! Juawa)) s01saqsy 8 1omag KiABID 8TTHINS S61-HINS
S 0§ PLET £6 AW SOISAQSY 8 1amag KraBID YITHIAS £61-HWS
S 0§ ¥L6L £0€ JUIWY) SOISAQSY 8 1amag Qrael) 01T-HWS 61-HWS
§ 0§ vL61 761 JuauIa’y S0}8QSY 8 19M0G AJiARID) £TT-HNS ELI-HIWS
S 0s PL6I 981 JUIWR)) SOISAQSY 8 1amag Alaein 881-HINS LI-HWS
S 0§ vL61 001 JudWI]) S0Y5aqSY 81 123§ iaeID I-HNS §51-HWS
S 0§ pL61 LEE JUAWR]) 503538V [41 1M3g AlaRID SLE-HWS 991-HWS
S 0s rLE1 $91 Juawa) SO)SGSY 01 1amag ALaeln vL1-HWS €CC-HIS
S 0s L6l LLL JUSWAY) S0J5qSY 8 1amag Araeln ZIC-HIWNS 81E-HWS
S 0§ L6l 881 jusuIaly SOISaqsY 8 19Mag AIARID 11E-HWS PLE-HINS
S 0§ PL6L S8 JUIA S0ISIQSY 8 lamag Araely 1IE-HWS ZIE-HINS |
s 0§ 61 691 U] S0)53QSY 8 1amag Auaein SET-HWS PLTHWS
S 0§ L6 £LT JUSWAY S0182QSY 8 Jamag AIARID L8T-HIS ZET-HIWS
s 0§ L6l (44 JUBUIAY) 50)S3qQSY 8 Jamag Ajiaein 181-HWS €01S
§ 0¢ vL61 348 Juda]) SOISIQSY 8 1amag Aaein ¥8T-HWS €9T-HIS
s 0§ PLEL 98¢ JuawW]) S0ISAGSY 8 lamag Aiaeln £61"HWS 8TZT-HWS
S 0§ PL6T 81T Juaway) SOISAqSY 8 1amag Araeln LIZHWS 161-HWS
S 0s PLOL L6Z W] S0JS3qSY [4} 1amag Araei 98Z-HNS 8£THWS
S 0§ PLOL 751 JUIIWY) SOISIQSY 41 lamag Klaeiy 60T-HWS 0ZT-HNS
s 0s vL61 X4 WD) S0ISIGSY 4! 19M3§ AiAeiD 0ZZ-HNS 01Z-HWS
S 0$ PLEL (44 UMW) S0J$IGSY 4} 1amag ALaein £0C-HWS 60Z-HINS
S 0s vL61 [44 JuduIa’) S03S3QSY 4 10M3F AUABID 80Z-HS £0Z-HWS
(saBa)) (saBax)
AB([ UONEjjEISUL (L) pduay [ BN adig g adig as() a1 swdag
ajy] Injasn Sujupeway a1 Injes) papdadxy




221914y Bem

vLZZvt

S 0§ pL61 61 JUBUIAY) SOISIqSY 2 Jamag Aiae1n ZOE-HWS SLZT-HWS
§ 0§ PL6l 66 JUAUW]) S0JS3qsY 3 lamag Ajjaein SLZ-HWS 08Z-HWS
s 0s bL61 8I¢ JUBLIST) 50383qsy [4 1amag Aaein £91-HNS 91€-HIS
S 0§ vi6l 6Tt UMW) $0)5AqSy [4} 10m3g KjiaerD 91E-HWS SIE-HWS
[4 0 IL61 65T JUBWI) s0IS3qsy ol 1omag Ajiaein EIVHWS IE-HINS
4 0s 1461 6¢C JUBUIST) S0ISAQSY 01 19MIG AARID LYE-HWS SI-HWS
{ 0s 1L61 414 JUIWATY SO3SAQSY 0t Jamag Ajaeln SI-HWS E1¥-HWS
S 0s vL61 £el JUIWIT 5035298y 8 Jamog Ajiaeiny £8€-HNS L6E-HWS
s 0s V.61 SL1 AW SOISASY 8 Jamog ANABID 681-HINS 061-HWS
S 0s VL6l 9 JUW)) S0j5qSy [1]8 J9mag Ajlaein Z91-HWS £91-HWS
S 0$ L6 692 Jusz]) 50353qSY 8 lomag AyaelD IpE-HWS 9N1S
S 05 PLOE BEI JUaWY) S0)S3qSY 8 19M3§ A)aei) $8€-HWS 98€-HINS
s 0s PL6] 348 juswa)) s0ISAqsy 8 Jamag Ajiaern 68T-HNS S8E-HNS
s 0$ wL61 oIl JUBUIRTy S0ISAQSY 8 Jamag AjARID FLE-HNS €8E-HWS
) 0s L6l L0T JUALATY S0IS3GSY 8 Iomeg Alaeln SOI-HWS 18E-HINS
s 0§ vi6l 1144 Ju3W]) SO1SAqSY 8 100G AIABID 6LT-HWS LLE-HWS
S 0s VL61 L8T uRW]) S015245Y 8 1395 AJIABID) 8LT-HWS [0€-HWS
S 0¢ L6l 9 jualIa]) SO)Saqsy 8 1amag Kraer 88C-HWS 68T-HWS
s 0s PL6IL [43 juatial) s0saqsy 8 lamag Ajjaein 987-HWS LRT-HWS

i § 0s L6l 95T JUSUIAT) SO3SAQSY 8 1m3g Araes) 8LT-HNS S9T-HWS
48 0§ 1861 SSlL JUSR]) §0ISAQSY 8 1amag AjasID 9I-HINS v9T-HIS
§ 0§ vL6T 6LT JUIWI]Y S0ISAQSY 8 Iamag AjaeID ZIV-HWS 1ETHINS
S 0$ bL61 LL JUBUIR]) SOISAGSY 3 1omag Apaein 991-HWS S9I-HIWS
41 0s 1861 €11 judwa)) $0353q8Y ] 1amag Auaein S9T-HWS 91-HNS
S 0§ wLol LS JUDW) S0)Saqsy 8 lamag Ajiael £1€-HNS 01€-HNS
S 0§ PLOT [43 JUSLT) 50)S3qSY 8 1308 A)IABID) £9T-HINS 62-HWS
S 0s PLEI 61 jusuId]) S0ISAQSY 8 Jomag Ajael) £LE-HWS 88ZT-HWS
S 0s PL61 19T Juswa $01S3gsY 8 Jamog Ajaeln) ELTHWS 6LZ-HIWS
s [ L6l sTT WaW) S0153qsy 8 13ag AARID YLT-HNS 8LZ-HWS
s 0$ PLOL 682 JUIWSY) SOISAQSY 8 Jamag AJjAeiD LOT-HWS LZZ-HNS

(saway) (samax)
ST o)) Supupusey T —— A UOPH[IBISUL (LA) p3uay [eH3BE adig azig adig s Qi yudmdog




224314 IMFHUM

L4 %4

vLZZvl

ol 0s 6L61 58 SpLON) [Autadiod 01 1amag AIABID SIT-HWS 1ZZ-HWS
o1 0§ 6L61 6v1 apuopy) [Autakjod o1 1amag Araein 90Z-HNS 8IZ-HWS
(i) 0 6L61 1L apUOYD |AuIAK|0d ol 1omag AjaRIDy £17HWS COTHWS |
01 0s 6L61 POE spuoy) JAuak[og ol lomag Aaein Z0T-HNS 861-HNS
0L 0 6L61 vil adq ucdf anang 8( Jomag AArID 09¢-HIWS [9¢-HIWS
0l 0 6L61 082 adig uosf opnang S1 Jomog AjarID 9ZTY-HNS LTrHIWS
oL 0s 6461 6Z1 adig ueuj a[uongy SI Jomag AyAeID STr-HWS 9Zr-HWS
0L 0s 6461 L6 adig uayj 9jpong 81 12135 AjARID S66-HWS 60v-HWS
(I] 0§ 6L61 [44 adyg uou] 3[gong 81 1omag Aaei p6E-HNS S6E-HNS
ol 0 6L61 951 adiq uos| ajgong St 10Mag ALABID TUW-HWS ST-HIWS
ol 0s 6L61 9zL adig uoy anong 1 1amag KAl SSE-HWS ZZrHWS
o1 0§ 6L61 (4 adiq uoif ajuong 1 19Mag A1ARID 8-Sd SSE-HWS
§ 0s yL6L [4a8 JUSWS) S0353QSY 8 Jomag Alaei SLE-HWS 90£-HINS
5 0s PLET 1174 JuAWR) S038GSY 8 Iameg Apaein 63€-HNS 88€-HWS
S 0S pLE1 162 JUBWAY) SOISAGSY R Jomag AAein $8¢-HINS L8¢-HINS
S 0s pL6L LOT JUSWA)) S0)SAQSY 3 Jomag ANARID 305-HWS Z8E-HWS
s 0s vL61 443 S SOISIGSY 8 lomag Kiaeln [£Z-HWS 80£-HWS
S 0 L6l 81 jJuowIaD) S0IS3GSY 8 Jomag Aiasin OZT-HWS 661-HWS
S 0s L6l So¢ R S0)Saqsy 8 12/m25 AjARID £91-HIS 81-HIS
S 0s ¥LEL £81 JUAUWA)) S0IS3GSY 8 1amag Ajjaein 81-HWS SLI-HWS
< [ PL6L 1823 JusWaY) $0J5AQSY 8 1mag AIAeID 9IE-HNS ¥OI-HWS
§ 0s yL61 997 uaUSY S0ISGSY 8 lamag Aaein OrE-HNS SEE-HWS
S 05 yL6L L0T U2 S0J83QSY 8 Iomag Anaein 60€-HNS 68€-HINS
$ 0s L1 9rT A SOISAGSY 8 Iomag AjlAeID £67-HWS 8LE-HWS
S 0s vL61 343 USWA)) SOISIASY 8 lomag Ayaein S1€-HWS 60£-HIWS
S 0 yL61 Ll JUSWAY) SOISAGSY 3 1omag AlaeID £6T-HNS 9LTHWS
S 0s ¥L61 [43 JUDWIBY) SOISAGSY 8 Jamodg AIABID 08T-HWS €6Z-HWS
s 0 yL61 0Ll WAWA)) 50J53¢SY 8 lamog ArarID 661-HINS C6I-HINS
S 08 PL6L L6T JUBWAY 50}83GSY 8 lomag Kj1aein 60E-HINS LIE-HWS
S 0s ¥L61 9 B $0}SGSY 8 Jomag AnAein $-Sd T0€-HWS
(s183x) (saBax)
Y — ————— Ne( uonelEIsuf (1L4) wsua] [BLBIA 3dig azig adig asfy ar yowdag




uu.._u_.—.zw_..g. Si-z vizzvl

0l 0s 6L61 334 apHoIYD) |Autakjog 8l 10mag RALID £95-HIS 79S-HIS
0l 0§ 6L61 [43} 3pHOYD [Autak|od 81 1amag Ajiaein 29S-HWS T§S-HNS
01 0s 6L61 88 apuoy) [Awtadiod 81 Jomag Anaesn SS1-HWS YSI-HWS |
of 0$ 6461 %4 apuofyD JAuiak]od 81 1Mmag Kiaeln PSI-HWS £S1-HWS
01 0s 6L61 [44! apuoy) |Auiakjog 8 Jamag Maein SO-HINS L9S-HWS
o1 0s 6L61 101 apHo[YD [Aulrk[og 8l lomag Aaein ZSS-HNS 1SS-HINS
1] 0§ 6L61 9L spuolyD [Auiakjod 81 1mag Aaesn) 60-HNS 66€-HNS
o1 08 6L61 61 dpUOD [AutAA[Og 81 18M3g ApARID £2E-HWS P6£-HINS
01 0s 6L61 44 3puoyD JAusakjod 81 Iamag Aaein YZE-HWS £2€-HNS
ol 0§ 6L61 L61 B 3puoD [Auiakjod 8 12m0g AjirelD LSI-HINS S9F-HINS
o1 0§ 6L61 8L1 i apuoy) jAutakjod 8 Jamag Ajaein STHNS 9T-HIWS
ol 0§ 6461 £22 spuopy) jAuiakjod 2 1238 AJIARID YTHWNS STHWS
01 0 6L61 (43 apuo|y) |Auiak|og 8 1omag AjlaeID £T-HWS ¥T-HNS
o1 0s 6L61 022 apuoly) [Autakiod 8 1amag AIARID) ZTHWS £2-HNS
01 0 6L61 95¢ apuoyD [Auiakjod 8 1Mag Aaeid) SO-HIWS ZZT-HWS
01 0s 6L61 £0t apuoy) [Autakjog 8 1amag AARID) L6I-HINS SO0ZT-HWS
01 0§ 6L61 e apuoy) [Auadjod 8 Mg AABID 961-HWS L61-HWS
o1 0§ 6L61 2! 3puoy) jAutakjod (i) lamag Ajaeiny QEZT-HWS 9TT-HWS
ol 0s 6L61 8€T 3puoyD 1Autakjog 8( famag AjiARID HP-HWS 09€-HWS
[4} 0§ 1861 191 apuoy) |Autakjod [ 1omag AiAeiD) 09[-HIWS 191-HWS
0l 0§ 6L61 344 apuojy) |Auakiod 01 Jamag Aaein 861-HNS 0£Z-HINS
o1 0§ 6L61 912 apuopy) jAwakjog 8l Jamag Alael 66£-HWS 11v-HINS
01 0$ 6L61 98 apuojy) |Auakjod 81 Jomag Ayaein 1SS-HINS LSE-HWS
01 0s 6L61 661 apuoy) jAuakjod 81 Jomag Kjiae1n 162-HNS YZE-HWS
ol 0s 6L61 98¢ SpUOIYD [Awakjog 8! lanog Araeln LSE-HWS 16T-HWS
ol [ 6L61 691 ‘apuojy) jAmakiog 4} 1omag Alaely LST-HWS 091-HWS
0l 0§ 6L61 (44! apuOIY) |Autadjog 8 lamag KiAesD) 81Z-HWS v0T-HWS
41 0s 1861 8501 3pHOIYD jAulak[od 14 lomag AraeiD #SH-HINS 9¢h-HINS
ot 0s 6L61 Y4 PpUOIYD [AuIAL[og o1 Jomag AaeIn LZTHNS €1T-HWS
ol 05 6L61 8¢ 3puoy) [Autakloq S1 13M35 ApaeiD 6Sd_LST-HWS
(sawax) (sa8ax)
ST Moy Sunupmay R RLU R (1L4) wpduag [sLaely adig ang adig asn dj Juawdag




a3 IBLM

91-C

VLiTTvl

01 0 6461 34! apuo[) Kuiakiod 8 iomag Apaern OVZT-HINS S9S-HWS
41 0§ 1861 SII 3puOY) [Autaijod 8 Jomag AIaeI) £ST-HINS 8PS-HINS
01 0 6L61 441 apuolyD JAmaklod 8 1amag Aari) TYT-HWNS LyS-HS
01 0s 6L61 i apuofy) [Auzakiod 8 1amag AraelD $95-HNS 9¥S-HWS
41 08 1861 6£C apuojy) jAutakjog 8 Jomag A1aRID SE-HIWS SES-HIS
1 0 1861 6 pHO) [Auadiod 8 Tomag KIABID 6-HINS Zhi-HAS
[4 0s 1861 SS1 Spuoly) |Aurkiod 8 19M3G ALariD OFP-HWS I¥-HWS
4! 0 1861 88 apuo[y) |Autadiod 8 1mag GLaein Zrr-HWS Ovy-HS
4! 0s 1861 ({14 apuojy) [Lutakjod 8 Jomag AaelD 8¢-HINS 6£r-HINS
Tl 0 1861 6€1L 3puo[YyD [Auiad]od 8 lamag Aiaein 8€S-HWNS SEFHWS
[A! 0§ 1861 607 apuolyD) [Auadjog 3 1am3g AIARLD) SEr-HWS +HWS
01 08 6L61 8¥T apuoyyD JAuiakjod 8 IoMmag KiaelD) OPZ-HINS [£€-HWS
oL 08 6L61 (44! 3pUOYD 1Amakiod 8 Iamag AlaeiD 6ZE-HINS 0EE-HWS
01 0 6L61 L apuopy) [Auiaklod 8 Jamag ANAeID 8TE-HINS 6ZE-HINS
4} 0s 1861 s81 apLojy) 1Auakfod 8 Jomag Anaein 69T-HWS [LTHWS
41 0s 1861 96T apuoy JAutakjod 8 12108 ANABID 997-HWS OLZ-HINS
41 0 1861 €51 apuoyD [Autakiog 8 1omag AJAeID LIT-HNS 99T-HWS
ZL 0§ 1861 951 POy (Autakiod 8 1/09§ KIARID ISTHWS LYTHWS
ot 0 6L61 SEL apuOlYD JAuIAL|od 8 Jomag Ajaei 6Z¢-HNS cyTHNS
ol 0s 6L61 10Z apuo[yD [Auiakod 8 1am0g AIARID LYS-HNS 1vZ-HWS
01 0s 6L61 091 apuopy) [Auiadjod 8 Tamag AyAID 0EE-HNS OYZ-HIS
4} 0 1861 LET apuofyD [Auakjod 4l 129§ &iAeID 191-HNS S1S-HIS
41 0 1861 951 spuopy) 14uiakjod 4} Jamag Aael) $8r-HNS 167 HNS
4! 0s 1861 0st spuopD [AuAkjod [41 Jamag KAl #8Y-HINS S8 HIS
4! 0 1861 931 apuoy) [Auiakiod 4! Jomag AarID SIS-HWS p8-HINS
u 0§ 1861 11 apLo) [Autakjod 4! 1omag Kaein L67-HWS 99F-HINS
(1] 0§ 6L61 SIZ apuoy) |Autakjod 01 lamag AraeiD 691-HWS 89[-HIWS
ol 0s 6L61 [4 apuolyD [Auta[od 01 Jomag Ajaeisy L-Sd 8TE-HWS
o1 0s 6L61 L8 apuojy)) jAuiakjod 81 12m3G AArID £S1T-HWS #9S-HINS
0L 0 6L61 652 apuopyD [Auiadjod 81 lomag KIAeL) ¥9S-HNS £9S-HIS
(sawax) (s189%)
a1B( HOnB{BISU] (1L4) psuay B adiy az1g adig as) a1 yuewmdag

91T [NJas) Suruyewray

agy] Ingosq) pajaedxy




311 J-198Mm

Li-t

YiTevl

41 05 1861 96 apuoy) [Auiakjog 8 Tomag Anaein 89F-HWS 8¢S-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 Skl 3PHOYD [AuIALjod 4 1amag Aiaeiny LE-HWS 0£S-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 81 apuo[y) [Aulafjog 4! 1omag AlaID 6€-HWS 8€-HWS
[44 0 1661 017 apuoy) jAutak|og [4} 1oMag Ajtaeln LE-HWS 9E-HWS
(4 0$ 1861 oL apuo[y) |Auiakjod 8 1amag Kiaeigy ¥HINS LES-HWS
41 0§ 1861 901 Spuoy) [Auafjog 8 Jamag Aarin 9L-HNS 8€7-HINS
zl 0s 1861 s¢ apuopy) [Kuakjod 8 Jamag Qe 9-8d ¥STHWS
(44 0s 1861 81 apuo[y,) Aulakiod 8 1omag AIARID SST-HWS 1ST-HWS
4! 0S 1861 £6 spuopD [Auakjog 8 Jomag Ajiaeip SYTHNS 9vT-HWS
A 0 1861 051 apuopD [Ausafjod 8 Jamag AaeID SYT-HWS SYT-HWS
01 0§ 6L61 (344 apuoy) [Auldjod 8 12m3g Aj1aelD) 861-HWS 61T-HWS
4 0s 1861 LOE apuoyD [Auiaklod 8 Jomag KBl 08%-HWS I8%-HWS
g 0§ L6l S11 apuoy) |Autak]og 8 lomag Araein 81€-HWS #8¢-HINS
oL 0 6L61 L¥Z apuoIy) [Auiakjod 8 Jamag Ajiaein) YZZ-HIWS 67Z-HWS
ol 0§ 6L61 (x4 3puo[y) |Amaijog 8 Jamag Aiael) SOT-HWS STT-HWS
0l 0s 6L61 807 apuojyy jAutaklog 3 1aMmag Aj1ARID SZCHWS $ZT-HWS
o0l 0s 6L61 99 3puofyD jAuiak|od 8 Jomag Aaein STTHWS 917-HWS
01 [ 6461 LST apuoy) jAmaijod 8 J2MIG AJIARID 61T-HAS 961-HNS
ot 08 6L61 £2T apuoy) jAutakjod 8 Jamag Kjaerny £EE-HNS HNLLS
4 0s 1861 1€ apuoy) [Autakjod 8 Jamag Qaein IrrHINS 6£S-HINS
[4 0$ 1861 $ST PO [Auiaklod 8 lomag Ajaeip vEP-HNS 8SP-HINS
41 05 1861 901 apuojyD) j£usakjog 8 Jamag Ararin 0LZTHIWS 69T-HWS
41 0s 1861 8 3puoly)) |Auiadjod 8 Jomag Aaei) YST-HNS SST-HINS
4] 08 1861 orl apLoyD) jAuta[og 8 1mag Aaei) YSTHNS EST-HWS
[4} 0 1861 LLT apuo) [Aumakjog 8 lomag Ajiaein 8YS-HWS ZSZT-HWS
4 0S 1861 101 spuopy) Amakjod 8 1omag Apaein LYTHNS SYT-HWS
a1 0§ 6L61 |12 3puojy) [Auiakjod 8 lamag Ajaei 091-HNS 6SI-HINS
ol 0 6L61 911 3pUoYyD JAutakjod 8 1amag Kiaein 6S1I-HWS 8S1-HIS
44 0s 1661 05T apuo|y) JAuiaklod 4 1amag AAaeID 8E-HWNS vL-HWS
[44 08 1661 133 apuoyD) [Auiakjog Z1 1amag Alaeln PL-HWS LEHWS
(sa82X) (samax)
T — B — A uonE|jEISU[ (1L4) p8ua [RRAER adig azig adig asf} @l 3udwidag




LRITIE BT EIRFTY

81-T

vitTrl

Zl 0§ 1861 L¥T apuoqy) JAulAA[od 8 1omag AnasiD T8-HINS 98FHWS
(4 0s 1861 (43! apuo) [Auiakjod 8 Jomog AnaelD L8V"HNS t9P-HWS
ol 0§ 6461 1¥E apuopy) [Kuiakjod 8 1amag Kiaein 9ZTT-HNS ¢LI-HWS
{44 0s 1661 £91 apuopy) jAutakiod 4 Jomag AARID 9¢-HINS SL-HWS
[44 0 1661 91 spuoyD JAutakjod 8 1amag Kiaein) pL-HNS 98-HNS
41 0 1861 08 apHoyD [Auiakjoq 01 Iamag Aaein EE-HINS 1SY-HIAS
zL 0§ 1861 £61 spuopy) [Awakjog 8 Jamag Ajaeln 1S-HINS 9St-HIWS
(4! 08 1861 09€ spuofyD JAumakjog 8 1amag Alaer) LS-HWS pEr-HINS
ol 0§ 6L61 £ST apuoy) jAutadiog 8 lamag Aaein SSE-HINS 1Zv-HINS
01 0s 6L61 112 apuoy) [Kuiadijod 8 Jomag AjiaeIn P6E-HINS C6E-HINS
ol 0s 6L61 22! apHOMY) [Kuakiod 8 Jomag AjaelD 97¢-HWS SLE-HWS
1 08 1861 T0€ 3puoMD JAulaklod 8 Jamag AaeIn OLE-HWS €LE-HWS
41 0s 1861 80T apuopy) [Autakiog 8 Jamag Ajlaeln 1LE-HINS 0LE-HINS
oL 0 6L61 ¥8€ apuoy) 1Auirfjod 8 13mag ANARID) 1£E-HWS vEE-HWS
ol 0s 6L61 81 ApUOID [AUALIO 8 1omag AaeID 0SS-HINS 9Z¢-HIS
[44 0§ 1861 zLl apuoy) [Aumaidiod 8 1amag AlaeiD EYTHIWNS LLTHIWS
o1 0 6L61 £8 3puOY) jAutAk[og 8 1omag Aarin 891-HNS L91-HWS
4 0 1861 1L apuopy) [Auiakjod 8 19m0g AIABID Por-HNS 88r-HWNS
z1 0s 1861 6¥i spuo[D [Autakog 8 Jomag AaeID 13-HNS £87-HWS
(41 0§ 1861 762 SPUO[YD [AUlALjOd 8 Jomdg AJIARID ES-HINS 08y-HIWS
4! 0§ 1861 L61 SpUOD [Auakjod 8 JMmag K1aeln 18- HIWS vS-HINS
0L 08 6L61 111 apuoy) JAuIALod 8 Jamag AyAriD 8S1-HWS 95¢-HWS
44 05 1661 9L SpUOYD [AuIak|og 8 1amag AiaeiD ¥SS-HINS 9L-HINS
4 05 1861 8¢ apuoyD) JAmakjod 3 1Mag Ajaelny IpP-HNS 8LF-HWS
41 0 1861 L61 apuofyQ |Autakiod 8 Iomag AiaID 1#-HNS pLI-HNS
(il 0$ 6L61 L8 apuojy) |Autakjod 8 1om3g Kj1aRID) 8TE-HINS LIE-HWS
(i 0s 6L61 LyE apuLojy) [Aulakiod 01 Jomog AIaRID 9ZZ-HNS 0LI-HINS
ot 0§ 6L61 961 apuoyD [Autakjod 01 199§ AlarID 0LI"HS 691-HIS
S 0s vLEL £11 3puoYD |Auiak|og 8 1amag Aaein OLE-HNS 29T-HINS
4 0s 1861 zE spuopy)) [Autakjod 14 180008 AjaRID 11-Sd_6¢r-HNS
(saeax) (s1wa)x)
A ——— ogrY [y psdes Jpe([ uoPsB|[EISUY (1LA) Psuag [ELRNER Adig ang adig as) iy yuduwdag




2ad-3yBum

61-C

viivl

(4 0 1861 681 apuopy) [Autakjog 8 lamag Apaeiny 9bZ-HNS $OE-HWS
[41 0§ 1861 002 3puoy) jAuiakjog 8 1m0 AJIaE1D 8SP-HNS 89%-HIWS
[44 0s 1661 1s€ 3pHONY) Autakog 8 1omag Ajiaeiry 8¢-HWNS 06-HAS

61 0s 8861 98 3pUOIYD [Autaklod 8 Jomag Auaein LI£-HNS 06Z-HWS
4! 0§ 1861 (403 3pHO[YD [Auiakjod [4} 1oMmag Miaein) 68+-HAS 91$-HNS
[44 0s 1661 Epl apuapy) |Kutafjog zl Jamag Ajaeln €L-HWS O-HWS

[ 0s 1861 09€ 3puoy) JAutakjod 8 Jameg Apaeln 8¢-HWS #0S-HNS
41 0s 1861 44 2puOYD 1KuiAL]od 8 1amag Araesn £6v"HNS p6r-HINS
zl 0s 1861 061 apuoyy) |Autafjod 8 Jomag Aaes) ISTHWS 9STHIWS
61 0s 8861 6£T SpuoyD JAuiakiod 3 1omag ANARID 8LS-HINS 6ST-HIS
[44 05 1661 20¢€ apuopy) [utakjod 4 1omag ANARID 8-HWS 67-HWS

[ 0§ 1661 41! apuo) |Auiaf[od 4 1omag AAeID 0r-HINS 6€-HIS

ol 0§ 6461 19 SPHOYD JAutaf]od 8 1mag ANael 167-HWS 055-HINS
[4 0§ 1861 £pl spuojy) [Auiakjog 8 121495 Aiae1D 69E-HNS 1LE-HWS
o1 0§ 6L61 LET 3puoy) [Auiakiog 3 lamog AjaelD LTEHWS SEEHIWS
4 08 1861 611 spuoyD [Autakjod 8 lamag Alaein 9SZT-HWS 8ST-HINS
[44 0§ 1661 96T 3puoy) [Autakjog 4! 18m3g Ajaein L-HWS 89-HWS

[44 0§ 1661 v 3puolyD JAuiak]od 41 113§ Aaeiy Z1-Sd LLS-HWS

(44 05 1661 9E apuo) [Kutakiod u Jomag Alaern LLS"HWS 8t-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 1£Z apuo[y) jAuakjod 4] 1omag ANARID St-HNS Ly-HWS

01 0§ 6L61 §ST apuoyD [AwiAkjod 81 lomag Qi $9¢-HINS 99€-HWS
o1 0S 6L61 #S1 apuopD jAuakjog 81 1om3g AARID £9€-HNS S9E-HIS
01 0s 6L61 Tl 3puoO [Autakiod 81 Jomag AJARID T9E-HINS £9€-HINS
ol 0s 6L61 $sT 3puoly) [Autakiod 81 Jamag ANARID 19€-HWS T9¢-HIS
ot 0s 6L61 01 apuoyD) [Autakjod ST 1amag Kaern 99¢-HNS LOE-HWS
(4 08 1861 06 3puoIg) [Kutakloq 4! Jomag Ajiaein OLF-HINS 68~HINS
(4 0s 1861 O£l 3puoyD |Auiakjog 4 1amag AjaeID 99v-HINS OLy~HIS
01 0s 6L61 91l dpuUolYyD |Autafjog 8 lomag Aaei LIS-HINS 995-HIWS
(41 0§ 1861 3 apuoyy) |Autakjog 8 lamag Aaein ¥9r-HANS T¥S-HIWS
(4 0§ 1861 S01 apuoy) [Kwadiod 8 Jomog AjiaeID) TYS-HWS 17S-HNS

(si8a}) (s183%)
a)1'Y Inyosn) Bupureusay ajy] Imyosq) pardadxy e onEnEsuL (L) wavay TeuRsI 2dig ang adig o a1 wawsag




d1AJIYTHAL

0Z-Z

YLIZY]

ol 05 6161 O£l SpUOMYD) |AMAK[Od 8 lomag AiARID 1L1-HINS 6V€-HWS
01 0$ 6L61 741 apuoyD JAulakiod 8 1amag Ajaeln 6VE-HWS ThE-HWS
ol 0§ 6L61 354 spuoy [Auiakjod 8 12Mmag Ljiaein) 80t-HINS CEE-HINS
o0l 0s 6L61 191 3puoyD) jAuIAKI0g 8 Tamag AIaeID £6€-HWS STE-HNS
4! 0s 1861 sSi SpUOD [AuIAL[od 8 19mag KIABID LLTHNS L6Z-HWS
[ 0 1861 |§24 spuoyD jAutakod 8 1amag Aiaeln L6T-HWS 96Z-HNS
S 08 vLEL [i141 apuoy) [Autakiod 8 19m3§ A1ARID T9T-HNS 19C-HNS
4! 0§ 1861 811 apuopyD 1Auiak]od 8 fomag AlaeiD 0ST-HS 6¢C-HWS
[4! 0s 1861 (43! apuolyD [Auiakjog 8 19M0G ANABID 6VTHINS 8YCT-HINS
01 0§ 6L6L aa! spuopy jAutakjog 8 1210 AjaelD OLI-HWS ILI-HNWS
(44 0§ 1661 9£T apuop [Auakjod 4! Jomag AjAeln IL-HWS ¢L-HINS
[44 08 1661 (444 spuopy) [Anaklog 4} Iomag Aaeln [1I-HWNS [LHWS
(4 0s 1661 {33 SpHOMD Kuakjod 41 Iamag Ajaely 69-HIS 0L-HWS
@ 0$ 1661 0T 3pUOYD JAUAL[Og (41 lomog Ajaelny LS"HINS 8S-HWS
[44 0 1661 £21 apuopy) |Autakiog [41 1308 ANABID 95-HWS LS-HWS
4 0§ 1661 80€ apuojy) jAuakjod [4} 13M3G AlARID £5-HNS ¥SHINS
44 0 1661 £6 spuoy) [Auak|og 4 Jomag KIARID IS-HINS £S-HWS
[44 0s 1661 £€1 spuoy) [Autakiod 4 lomag Aaein 0S-HWS ¢$-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 sz apuojy) jAuakjod 4] 1amag Ajavin ZS-HWS 1S-HINS
44 0 1661 LIT apuopyD jAutakjod ! lamag Auesn 0L"HWS [LI-HWS
44 0 1661 1p1 apuo[YD [Auiak|od 8 15m3g AlaeD T3-HNS 18-HWS
[44 0s 1661 161 apuo[y) [Autadliod 4! Jomag AjaeID 89-HWS 69-HWS
A 0 1861 8¥ spuo) [Autakjod 4 Iamag Aiael) 0I-Sd LSP-HINS
4! 0§ 1861 £PT spuopD [Autaklod 8 Jamag ApAeiD 1S9-HWS 2$+HINS
[44 0§ 1661 ShE spuopy) [Aulakjod 41 Jomag AARID 67-HNS 05-HWS
41 0s 1861 431 apuopyD JAulakjod 2 Jomag Apaein SES-HINS 9£S-HIWS
[4} 0$ 1861 1£2 apuo[y) JAmaijod 8 1amag ANABID TSP-HWS £SH-HINS
0L 08 6L61 991 apuojy) 1Auaiiod 8 1amag AAeID £EE-HWS 80-HIWS
[i] 0s 6L61 1T SpLOYD KutAkog 8 1amag Ajtaein 76¢-HINS £6€-HINS
4 05 1861 8L1 apuoy) [Aurakiod 8 lamag Aaeln SYT-HNS 69€-HINS
(sx@a}) (samax)
B( UORE[[BISU] (L) ypduay Euapepy 3dig ang adig asf) aruwdag
AT InJes) Sujupeway ap IJas() paydadxy




323 d-)gdum

12T

VLTLPL

44 0s 1661 63 3pUOYD [Amaklod 8 Iomag AaeiD 6Z1-HWS L1I"HWS
[4 0 1661 74} 3pHOLY) |Auiakjog 8 Jmag AaeiD SLI"HWS 911-HWS
[44 05 1661 S8 3PHOJYY) [Auakjod 8 Jamag Ajaeln P11I-HWS S1I-HWS
(44 0 1661 LLT 9puUo[yD [Auirf[og 8 Jomag Aiaein) LTS-HINS PLI-HWS
[44 0 1661 ¥IT SpUOYD 1Awaf[od 8 Iomag Ajael 6ZS-HWS TII-HWS
(44 0s 1661 91€ opHOIYD [Autakjad 8 Iamag Aaein SL-HWS SSS-HIWS
[44 0§ 1661 y1g spuopy) jAutakjod 8 1omag MIARID SL-HWS SE-HWS
ol 0s 6L61 711 apuoy)y [Autakjod 8 lamag Apaein SLE-HWS 6vS-HINS
(4 0s 1861 91 apuoly) jAutadjog 8 lamag A1aein 6Ly HINS L6V-HINS
41 0 1861 LIt apuojy) Auakjoq 3 lomag Aiaein S6v-HWS 96r-HWS
4! 05 1861 162 apuoy) 1Kuiafiod 8 19mag AjABID LLVHINS S6¥-HIWS
4] 08 1861 S0g 3oy JAutakjod 8 1omag AIARID T67-HNS £6v-HINS
4! 0§ 1861 £p1 apUoyy jAuiak[od 8 19Mag ANARID L6P-HWS C67-HWS
4! 0 1861 9Ll spuoy) jAutakjod 8 lomag Aaein 6SV-HINS £87-HWS
4! 0 1861 0gl SOy [AwAk[og 8 1amag Ajaeiy 8Ly-HINS 6Ly-HINS
[4 0 1861 [£34 spuopy) jAuiakjod 8 Jomag Aiaeiny 9S-HWS 9LF-HINS
48 0s 1861 Wl apuoji) [Autakod 8 Jamag Aaein LY HNS €97-HIS
4 0§ 1861 y01 apuopy) [Auiaklag 8 1amag Anaein £9-HINS ¢9v-HINS
4 0 1861 601 SpLOIY) [Aurakjod 8 lomag Aine1n 09%-HWS ™ [9v-HINS
41 0s 1861 1Ll apuojy) [Auiakjog 3 193§ ALAe1D £87-HINS 09-HWS
Tl 08 1861 €€ apuopy) |Auiakjod 8 Iamag AlAaes L1-Sd_8FF-HINS
4 0§ 1861 9L apuopy) jAmakiog 3 10mag AIARID Svr-HINS Lyt-HWS
ol 0§ 6461 [4%4 apuoy) [Awasjod 8 12M2G K)IAID TSE-HWS 61HWS
01 0§ 6L61L 8s1 3puopif) [Auiakjog 8 lamog Aaein 96£-HNS 86€-HINS
ol 0s 6L61 LEL apHo[y) [Autakjod 8 1M ApABID pLE-HNS 96€-HINS
$ 0s ¥L6L LEl OpHONYD 1Auiaklod 8 Lamag Ajiaeln L3E-HWS [6€-HINS
3 0 L6l 9¥T apuojyD) |Autakjog 8 lomag Aiaein 166-HWS 06€-HWS
01 0s 6L61 91 3puoyQ [Auiakjod 8 lamag Ayaesn) STE-HWS vLE-HWS
ol 0§ 6L61 981 3puoy) jAutakjog 3 Jamag ALl SLE-HWS 8S€-HIS
01 0g 6461 871 3puoY jAuiaklog 8 1amag AaeIO £SE-HNS ZSE-HINS
(s483)) (s18ax)
Y Imyos() Suupeuioy o] Moy poroadxyy 23E( uonE|[elsU] (1LA) yrSuay 1BLIB 3 azig adig 2l (1 yudwdag




324214393 Mm

[444

YLTLPL

[44 0s 1661 60T apuolyD [Auiak[od zZ1 Jomag AjaelD TLHWS £L-HWS
[44 0$ 1661 861 apuo[y) JAutakjod 8 1omag AJIARID £8-HIWS ¢8-HIS
(44 05 1661 811 apuoy) JAutAL[od 3 Jomag Ajlaein 9L-HWS LL-HINS
(<4 0§ 1661 1.2 apuoly) [Kutakjod 8 19Mm3g KLaeln 1£-HWS CE-HIWS
[44 05 1661 861 apuopy) [AuAf[od 8 Jamog Aaein S8-HWS [€-HWS
61 0§ 8861 (413 apuoi) JAuakjod 8 Jamag Apaesn 067-HNS 0ZE-HWS
[44 0 1661 9T 2pUOYD AL |od 4} 10/M28 ALl $S-HWS SS-HWS
(44 0 1661 LTE 3pUOYD JAuAL [ 8 Jomag AAe1D 6E-HWS C6-HWS
61 0 8861 851 apuofy) 1Auakiod 8 19M3g ANABID 65T-HNS 09Z-HWS
44 0s 1661 96 apuopyD [Auakjod 8 1amag ALasID 9.-HNS §8-HWS
[44 0s 1661 911 apuoD [Autakiog 8 lomag Aaein LL-HINS v8-HINS
[44 0s 1661 SLL apuoyD [Ausakjod 8 1omag AAeID ¥8-HINS 8L-HINS
[ 0 1661 982 spHOYD 1AuAkiog 3 Jomag Kraein 09-HINS 19-HWS
44 0§ 1661 1$ apuofy) [Autakjod 8 Tamag A1aelD 675-HINS ¥SS-HWS
[44 0 1661 98 3pUOYD [AuiAaklod 8 Jamag Alae1 8TS-HINS 62S-HIWS
(44 [ 1661 |14 2puopyD [Kuakjod 3 Jamag ANaeiD £1-Sd 87S-HIS
[44 0$ 1661 8L1 apHON) [AuiALiod 8 Jomag Arae1n 87S-HWS LTS-HIWS
(44 0s 1661 6T apuojy) [Auiakiod 8 lamag Aae1n 19-HNS Z1§-HWS
[44 0 1661 692 apuUoly) [Auirkjod 3 10M3G AYARID 89-HWS 9-HWS
[44 0 1661 £vE apuojyD [Aaiakjog 3 1omag AjaRin O-HWS St-HINS
[44 0 1661 68 apuoy) [Auakjog 8 Iomag AaeID Ly1-HWS 9% [-HIS
[44 0s 1661 43 apuoy) jAulALjod 8 19Mag ANARID TYI-HWS StI-HAS
44 0§ 1661 6€2 spuoy) jAulakjod 8 133G AaelD ZvI-HNS vrI-HWS
(44 0s 1661 86T spuory) [Autakjog 8 Jamag Anaein ¥PI-HNS E¥1-HINS
[44 0 1661 981 apuoyD [Awakjod 8 Jamag Anaein 9P1-HWNS THI-HWS
(44 0 1661 6L spHOYD JAutakjod 8 1amag AaelD OVI-HWS 1#1-HWS
(44 0s 1661 LEE apUOY) JAutALod 8 19mag AiARID 6£1-HWS OvI-HIS
[44 0 1661 ¥8 apuo[q [Autsijod 8 19Mmag Aiaein 9I1-HWS 6Z1-HWS
44 08 1661 61T apuolqD) [Ausadjod 8 1omag Auaeid vI1-HINS 8ZI-HWS
44 0$ 1661 9LT apuOY) [Kutadiod 8 10m0G AjaBID TII-HWS 811-HIS
(sawax) (sawaX)
Ar(q vonEEISUL (1.4) pduary 1[eHRRA adig azig adig as)) a1 Judwsag
Y [Jos) Surursay 1Y [nyas() pardadxy




AIAZ-3uM

£TC

VLIZYI

I [ngasn) Suyupemay

AJI'] Inyas() pajaadxy

- 0s: 8861
61 T 19¢ apuoy) 1Awakiog
= 8861 ¥8z apuOIYD [Autaklog 8 1omag Aypaeipy 9-HWS 6-HNS
- 0s 8861 91T apuoy) _?_.; 0 8 domog Aaein L-HS 8-HINS
61 - 162 £61 %_.E_-_U _.E“;”om . o ZHIS LHINS
01 o 8861 LI %_szo S_h;_& w s SELHNS 125 IS
= 0s 6461 081 %.roEU _b.“&_om 8 M35 Aytaeiny LI-Sd O£ HIWS
o MM 1861 vl — _b_.h;_s_ M 10458 AYiARID £vS-HINS PPS-HINS
4! s 1861 iL apuom) jfuirkiog 3 o LIS 41 Sk
u o 126t &) apuOmD IKBIALIOd 8 o LLSHAS 06 NS
(4 0s 1861 09 apuopy) [Auiadjod 8 e LAY Chr S
- " 1861 £61 3pHOJy) [AWAkjod 8 —— POEHIS DSLHINS
(4! " 1861 4X4 3puo) IKutaklog 8 Sy OOV HINS bESHAS
| u o = 91l apuiolyD |AuLiod 8 — LTS 35S
- = 1861 s1z apuoyy jAmakiod 8 = LOSHAS 005 HIAS
44 0s 1861 6¢1 SpuoYD [Auakjod 8 S SO HMT S5 IS
- : 1861 . oproii adiod 1M Aurniy 9Z5-HWS 865 HINS
- < 1661 $0T spuopy) [Kuakjod : 1om3s ABID £E-HINS L9v-HINS
- 0§ 1661 651 u_y.:o___u ; . f1od a 1amag KUAZID 99-HINS §9-HINS
o o 1661 6L Y & 1amag Aiaei) 0£S-HWS OLI-HINS
(44 MM 1861 0L SpuOND _Ew;_om M — LHIS SOLHAS
- , 1661 (143 3pHOIYD [Aunkiod 1amag Kaein) 897-HWS 69r-HINS
. s 1661 95¢ PHOWO ndiog “ agE e 8S-HINS 99-HIS
- MM 6L61 s11 apuol andioq Nw_ s 557 IS
4 1861 6tl SpHOI) 1AUIAL|0d Iomog Ayaein 9SE-HWS E7S-HINS
41 . = ve apuoD _?w&_& : v S8 HNS Lot HIS
= MM 1861 - opromD [intiog - somag Auaeid VESHWS 6S7-HINS
o1 o 6L61 €97 R _b_“i_om M 1omag Aaein LSYHINS £EHIS
- o 6L61 661 e = 1amag AIARID ZEC-HWS SOHIS
61 0s a6t L1z apuop) jAuAkiog - BMOG KYATID SOr-HNS POr-HINS
(s189%) ) 8861 bz PO Katndio i anm M_Hﬂo LOHWS LYI-HWS
auq ueEjEIsYy (L) BT SO v8E-HINS 61E-HINS
JeuRe adig azyg adig as) f wawdag




ERTEE QLAY vZ-T VLZZrl

61 0§ 8861 8L1 apuopy) [Autaiiod 8 Jamag MIAeID 0S-HINS 65€-HWS
(44 0§ 1661 $61 apuojy) 1AulaLjod 8 19mag AiaelD TE-HWS 1ZI-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 LEL apuoyD JAutALlod 8 12M38 AiaeIn) SrHWS prHNS |
44 0$ 1661 662 apuoyD [Aurakiod 8 1o AIABID vrHWS Er-HINS
4 0§ 1661 L apuopy) [Kutakiod 8 1omag AjaeiD £-HINS Cr-HIWS
44 0s 1661 vz 3puolg) AUIAL O] 8 19M3g AABID SOT-HAS 901-HWS
0L 0§ 6461 €97 apuojy) 1Auiakjod 8 1amag K1aeID 1SE-HWS £SE-HWS
61 0§ 8861 0£T apuoly)) [Auiakjod 8 Jomag Aiaein PES-HNS 0E-HWS
[44 0s 1661 Lyl apuo) [Autakjod 8 1omag Ajiaein ¥E1I-HWS €NLS
[44 0s 1661 £01 apuoy) [Auiakjod 8 1omag AARID LIT-HS 9NLsS
[44 0§ 1661 ¥ZT apuoy) 1Auakiod 8 Iamag AiaeiD) 98-HINS L8-HWS
61 0s 8861 911 spuag) JAmakiod 8 1amag Aaeiy 91-Sd OTHWS |
[44 0 1661 $91 apuoy) JAutaf|oq 8 1M AjaeID IS1-HNS LET-HWS
(44 0$ 1661 9zl apuofy) [AutAkjod 8 10128 AABID vE1-HNS SEI-HWS
44 08 1661 8L SpLOYD) [AutAkod 8 1omag AjaeIO £E1-HNS vEI-HIWS
(44 0 1661 441 apUOy) [Autadlod 8 103§ AiaeiD 0£1-HINS TET-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 SET apuopyD [Auakiod 8 1emag Ajaein LII-HWS 0ET-HWS |
(4 0$ 1861 £2C apuo[y) [Auakjod 3 Jomag AiaeIn 005-HINS 105-HINS
[44 0s 1661 £21 apuoy) [Auakjod [41 Jamag AjlaeiD 601-HNS v01-HIWS
[44 05 1661 01 3pUOYD [AuAL[Od 8 Jomog AaelD ¥S-HINS L9-HWS
[44 0s 1661 [24 9pHO[YD 1Autakjod 3 10m2g AJiARID 6L-HWNS 08-HWS
44 0$ 1661 ISt apuoyD [Autakjod 8 Jamag AiaeIn 8L-HWNS 6L-HIWS
[44 0s 1661 6£€ apuoyD Auraiiod 8 191095 AIARID S6-HWS 61S-HWS
44 0§ 1661 vLT apHOD JAuIAK|Og 8 1omog AABID ZEI-HNS EEI-HIWS
[#4 0§ 1661 9LT spaopD jAutakjod 8 Jamag KjjAe1D IS I-HWS ZEI-HIWS
4 0$ 1861 6V spuoy) [Auakjod 8 Jomag AiAelD p0S-HNS STS-HNS
4! 0 1861 szl ApHOD JAUAK(O ] 1amag AiaeIn SZS-HWS Z0S-HWS
[44 0 1661 661 Spuoly) 1Autakjod 8 1omag KA 1L-HWNS 86"HNS
[44 08 1661 €11 apuoy) [Auadjod 8 Jamag Aaein 0L-HWS 96"HWS
[«4 0s 1661 [i141 apuoyD) 1Autakiod 8 13108 A1ABID 0S-HWS 6EI-HNS
(s183X) (s18a))
A UOPBIEISU] (L4) pduay JeLIa)ey adig agg adig asn) qr yawgag
aJi'] [nJes() Supareury 3] [nyas) pardadxy




au13dy8uMm

vLZTyl

#1-Sd 9LS-HIS

(44 0s 1661 €1 apuopy) jAulsk[og 8 19Mag ANARID

(44 0s 1661 681 3pHOIYD [Autakog 3 1amag Aaein 06-HWS TES-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 92 apuopyD [Autafjog 8 Jomag AjAeiD) £9-HWS pIS-HWS
(<4 08 B 1661 13 apHoyD [Autaklod 8 1amag A1aeIn £9-HWS €1S-HWS
44 0 1661 9L1 spuopy) juakjog 8 1oMmag AIARID 99-HNS 9vv-HWS
61 0s 8861 60€ apuoy) [Autakjod 8 Jameg Ajaesn ¥9E-HINS CEFHIS
6l 0§ 8861 85 apuopy) jAuakjog 8 10M3G ANABID) 1EP-HWS 91H-HNS
61 0s 8861 £81 apuojy) [Kutakjog 3 Jomag ANARID £9¢-HWS v9£-HINS
[44 0$ 1661 vST apuopy) jAupadjod 8 Jomag AjAEID £E-HWNS VE-HINS
61 0s 8861 081 apuo|y) [Ausakjod 8 lamag AAaeID IZE-HWS CZE-HIWS
61 0¢ 8361 L6T apuolyD 1Auiakjod 8 10m9G A)ARID 61£-HWS 1Z¢-HINS
61 0s 8861 91T apuoy) [Autakijod 8 1omag Aj1aei0) SI-HNS E-HIWS
[44 0 1661 X4 3puo(yD [Amaijog 8 1amag ANABID E1S-HWS 1SI-HAS
[44 0 1661 £51 apuopy) [Autakjog 8 Jomag Ayaein SO-HIWS 6v1-HINS
[44 0§ 1661 (244 3pHOY)) JAutakjog 8 1amag Anaet) 98-HIWS 8€I-HWS
61 0s 8861 1€ spuoyD [Autakjed 8 lamag AjaeIn LE-HWS LT1I-HNS
[44 0§ 1661 891 apuoly) [Autakiod 8 19mag KIABID SSS-HIWS 9TI-HNS
%4 05 1661 #0T apuolyD JAuiakjog 3 Iomag Kaeiy ¥TI-HWS STI-HWS
(44 0$ 1661 88¢ apuoy) jAuakiod 8 1omag AARID vE-HWS €CI-HINS
[44 0 1661 81 apuopy) [Kuiakjod 8 1om3g AHARID S6-HWS 816-HWS
4! 08 1861 06 3puojy) JAmakjod 8 Jomag Aaein 66v"HINS 80S-HINS
4! 0s 1861 1L 3puop) HAutadlod 8 1om3g AjaeID L9HINS 1L-HINS
1]} 0s 6L61 |82 9PHOIYD [Auiak|od 8 19MaG KIABID 1ZrHINS YT-HINS
61 0s 2861 Ls 3pUOUD [Autakiod 8 lamog Aaein 8THINS 67-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 I€€ opuo) [Autakjod 8 lomag Ajaeiny #1$-HNS ¢9-HNS
44 0s 1661 65 apuopy) Huiakjod 8 Jomag Aaein 65-HWS 09-HWS
(4 0§ 1661 €T apuoy) |Kuiakjog 8 lamag Aaein T9-HWS 65-HIWS
61 0$ 8861 16T SPHOYY) [Auiak[og 8 lameg Aaein LTI-HWS 6Z¢-HINS
6L 0% 8861 CEE SPHORYD [Auiakjog 8 13m3§ Aiaer) 9I-HWS vir-HWS
6L 08 8861 £6T SpLIOIY) [Auiakjod 8 Jamag Ajiaeln 6SE-HINS 01y-HINS

(s183X) (samax)
TP — ST Pl 3je(] uopElIEISU] (LA) ysuay. teuepy adig ang adig asn @1 3uawdsg




321914-3uBUM

9CT

vLizZTrl

[44 0§ 1661 902 apuopy) jAutakjod 8 10M0g5 ANaBID 901-HS LOI-HWS
$ 0s vL61 86 apuOIYD [Aupa|odq 8 Jomag Ajpaein 095-HWS 90LS
S 0s L6l 0T ApuojyD |AuiAkiod 8 1omag ARl 9LE-HNS 09S-HWS
(4! 08 1861 ¥91 SpuUO[Y] Autak[od 8 1omag ANARID SL-HINS LL-HWS
4} 08 1861 £8 apuojy |Autakod 8 1amag AIAeID YL-HINS SL-HINS
ot 08 6L61 992 2puoY JAuLAkjog 8 1amag Aaein vrS-HWNS 8Z-HWS
0l 0S 6L61 PEL apuopy) [Kutakod 8 1938 AARID 61 HAS 81-HIWS
(i] 0s 6L61 £E1 spuoly) [Autakjod 8 122§ ANABID 31P-HWS LI-HIWS
(1] 0§ 6L61 84! apuopy) [Ausakjod 8 19mag Aiaein YOr-HWS ZOr-HWS
(4 0§ 1861 9L apuo) [Autak[og 8 1amag Aaein £0E-HNS 08€-HINS
41 0$ 1861 997 apHOIYD [Autakjod 8 19m9g AaeiD PI-HWNS 6LE-HIWS
S 0s pL6L ¥6 apuoy) [Auiadiog 8 1omag Aae1n) SLE-HWS 9LE-HWS
0l 0§ 6L61 [444 apHo) [Autakiod 8 Jomag APARID 0SE-HINS ¥SE-HINS
ol 0s 6L61 961 apuOY) [Kuiakiod 8 Iomag Apaei pSE-HINS 1SE-HWS
01 0s 6L61 LEL SpUOD {AWAKIO 3 1omdg AYARID vZ-HNS 0SE-HIWS
4} 0$ 1861 [44 apuoy) 1Auai|od 8 Jomag AaeiD 6LE-HNS LOE-HWS
4! 0$ 1861 6€T apuoy) [Aulakiod 3 1omIg ALARILY LOE-HWS SOE-HWS |
I 0s 1861 gl 3puoR AutaLjod 3 lomag Ajiaein S1-HWS £0€-HWS
4! 08 1861 9¢1 SpHOYD [Autafiog 8 1omag AjARID 66Z-HNS 00€-HAS
4 0s 1861 L01 apuoly) Auiakiod 8 1213§ AjiARID §6T-HNS 667-HINS
7l 0 1861 s¢ apuoly) [Autadlog 8 Jomag AlAeID) ¥6T-HWS S6T-HINS
41 0 1861 691 apuolyD 1Autakjod 8 1amag Ajaein 96Z-HNS ¥6T-HINS
61 0$ 8861 651 spuopy [Auiakjod 3 Iomag Apaeiy LTHWS STHWS
61 0s 8861 |§44 apuoy) [Auakiod 8 Jomeg Apaein 0S-HWS LTHWS
4! 08 1861 6L apuo) JAwakjod 8 1oMmag AaeID S6ZT-HNS SI-HWS
4] 0s 1861 €61 apuo[y) JAutakiod 8 1omag Kaein S6C-HINS PL-HWS
[ 0s 1661 (44 apuoy) [Autak[od 8 113§ Aiaein) 06"HNS 16"HIS
[44 0$ 1661 £€1 apuoy [Lutakjod 8 Jamag AaelD 08-HWS £8-HS
44 0§ 1661 £8 apuoD JAujakiod 8 lamag Apaein S9-HWS +9-HIS
[44 0$ 1661 [44 spuoyD JAuiakjod 8 19Mag AlAeID) 9LS"HNS £9-HINS
(s13%) (sawax)
AB([ UOYEB[[BISU] (L) pauag [euEl 2dig g adig a8 @1 yuawsag

1] [nyas() Surumemay

aJI'Y InJas() paydadxy




LLLP R TP

LTT

YLiTTrl

44 0s 1661 LEL SpUOIYD JAuiAk[od 8 lamag Aiaeln €ZI-HWS ZZS-HWS
44 0$ 1661 61 apuOIY JAuLaklog 8 1omag Ajaein) TE-HWS £6-HWS
(44 05 1661 0T apuojy) jAuadjag 8 Jomag AjlaeIn £21-HWS vZI-HAS
[44 08 1661 91 apHoly) Kulakod 8 1omag Ajaein) £6-HWS ZZI-HINS
[44 0s 1661 181 SpHOYD JAwALjod 8 Jomag Aaein 66"HWNS 001-HIWS
[44 0s 1661 L6 apuojyD jAuiakjog 8 lomog AaeiD #6-HWS S6-HNS
[44 05 1661 944 apuopy) jAwafjog 8 1oMG AARID 86-HWS v6-HWS
44 0$ 1661 S¥Z apuoly) (Auiakjod 8 Jamag KIARID v6-HWS £6-HWS
(44 0§ 1661 144 apuojy) |Autakjog 8 1amag Ajaein 88-HWS 68-HINS
61 08 8861 Lyl apuoyy |Auiafod 8 Jomag AAeiD 0Zr-HWS 1I-HWS
[44 0s 1661 8 apuofyD |Auiakjod 8 1amag Ajaei) 8TI-HWS €N1S
44 08 1661 092 JPUONYY) jAuAL[og 8 Jmag ANaeiD 96-HWS L6-HWS
[44 0$ 1661 6L apuoly) JAmakod 8 1amag ALl £01-HWS 1€S-HIWS
[44 0§ 1661 €l apuopyD) [Auiakjod 8 Jomag AjAeIDy TZS-HNS 0ZS-HIWS
[44 0§ 1661 €1 spuolyD [Autaflog 8 lamag Aiaein €01-HWS Z0I-HWS
[44 0§ 1661 281 spuopy)) [Autakjog 8 1m0 A)ABID 88-HNS 101-HWS
[44 0s 1661 91z APHOD |AuiaL]og 8 lomag Aaein T6-HNS E€S-HWS
61 0§ 8861 $OE apuoyy) JAuiakjod 8 12m3g A1ARID) 6L5-HINS 08S-HWS
61 0s 8861 8¢ 3pUoD JAuiakjog 8 Jomag Auaeiy 11-HWS 6LS-HINS
4 0s 1661 (444 3puoy) [Autafiod 8 Jomag AARID LOT-HWS 80T-HWS
61 0s 2861 8I¢ 3puopy?) [Autadjod 8 1omag AjARID 6LS"HWS OI-HWS
44 08 1661 [444 apuopy) jAuiakjog 8 12Mag K1AeID €SS-HNS 8NLS
[44 0$ 1661 [al} ApUOY) [Augakjoq 8 19M3g KJIABLD T-HIWS [+-HINS
[44 0§ 1661 LT apuoy) |Knakjog g 1amag Ajiaein 671-HWS 8¥[-HIS
[44 0§ L1661 9t1 3puoly) jAutakjog 8 Jomag Ajaeiy SO1-HNS €N.LS
[44 [ 1661 9€1 apuoly) jAwakjog 8 Mg Aario YOL-HINS SOI-HIWS
[44 0s 1661 S81 apuoyy) jAuaklog 8 Jomdg AjARID TE-HWS 0ZI-HIS
(44 0¢ 1661 102 SpUOY) [Kutakiod 8 Jomag Ajlaein L8-HWS 4Ml1s
(44 0§ 1661 LST APHOYD) [AuAkjog 8 damag Ajiaeiy L8-HNS 88-HWS
(44 05 1661 LET apuojyD jLuiakjog 8 lomog Anaeiy 0ZI-HWS 611-HWS
(sa8ay) (s1eax)
a3 myosp) Surpswoy B ajuQ uoyE|wISUf (L) pauag [eAB adig azig adig asq) a1 juswideg




ELELE QL EIEVR

8CC

vLiTZvl

$ 05 vL61 sl adid 91010U0)) PROIOJUISY 4! lomog AAID REC-HWS SPE-HWS
S 05 YL61 11 adig 31310000 paoIoJuIsy 2! 1omag KjiarlD 951-HINS 8EE-HIWS
S 0§ vL6L 434 ad1d 9321000 PANIOJUITY ja! 1omag Araein SYE-HINS LEE-HINS
S 0$ L6l 01 adid 9j2J0uU0)) PdIOJUIY 4! Jamag Araeln pre-HNS 9vE-HINS
S 0s vL61 8¥C adig 2)210u00) patojuIay 4! Jamag Aiaein LECHWS vPE-HNS
3 05 vL61 ¥0T adig sjas0u00) paoIOyuIYy ¥l Jamag Kuern 9EE-HINS 291-HINS
s 0$ PL6L 86T adig a1a10u0)) paoIOJUISY vl fomag AjaeID 9PE-HINS 8PE-HWS
S 0 yL61 00€ adig a1a10u0) PACIOJUIY vl Jamog AaelD OFE-HWS ZIv-HINS
< 0S vL61 181 adid 51210000 PIAOJUISY ba! 1amag AARID 8VE-HNS IvE-HIWS
S 0$ yL61 €S ad1 93210U0D) pacIojuiay 1 1omag AIARID IvE-HWS OvE-HIWS
S 0 #L61 LET adig 2)210U0)) PAOIOJIY ¥1 lomag Aaein ZI-HINS 9£€-HIWS
S 0 vL61 1€ adig 2J210u00) PACIOFUIY zl lamag AlAID ¥1-8d 18T-HWS
S 0§ L6l [ adig 21810u00) PAOIOJUISY Sl Jamag AaeiD S8I-HWS p8I-HINS
S 0 pL6L 10€ adig 93210U0() pedIoJulY S1 103§ AIABID ¥81-HNS 6LI-HWS
[44 0 1661 L81 spuo [Aulakjod 8 1m0g AIABID 86"HNS 66-HWS
61 0 8861 T8¢ apuoy) [Auiakjod 8 Iamag Aaein) 085-HWS 9-HWS
[44 0 1661 68 apuoqD jAmakjod 3 128 Apaeid TZI-HWS £SS-HWS
[44 [ 1661 LET SpLOIY) [AutAk|og 8 19/9g AIARID LET-HNS 9E1-HWS
44 0s 1661 €81 apuoy) [Kutaklod 8 1omag AaeiD 8T1-HNS €NLS
44 0§ 1661 801 SpHOY)) [Autakjod 3 10138 AjjaID RI1-HWS £ZS-HWS
61 0s 8861 68 apuOIY) Auakiod 3 10198 AJIARID LI"HWS 0T-HIS
[44 0s 1661 101 apuoD [Kuiadiog 8 Jamag AHaRID IST-HWS 0SI-HIWS
[44 0§ 1661 91 SpuOY) JAuIAKiod 8 Jomag Anaei $OI-HINS EOI-HIS
(sxwax) (s1wayx)
e — Lm0 Pl Jpe(| VONEI¥ISLY (L) y8us] BLBRy 2d1g azyg adid s ar juawigag




€T ATAVL

- - EEYETR 1T ITYYY 67T VLZTHL
peoy y331) peoy yas1) Apped
0 0¢ £861 VN VIN VIN 8 JAd 169 St #S Y44 Apped | M-FT08-80 60-Sd ‘uogeg dwng
HdE peoy 121gsiq 10je1auan
0 [1]3 5861 auedoig 94 A08F VIN VIN V/IN VIN | VIN VIN SOPIIM TEL | VO-Z6099ND | D-80-8d gy uonelg duing
peoy
peoy yunsi oS spIM
0 0f ¥861 VIN VIN VIN 0l DAd SSe 0 8L 00§ papood sopm 1€1 A€£208-80 80-Sd wopeys dung
PeOY Y331 lojeiauan)
0 0g $861 1dSHIA S HAE08F | VIN VIN VIN VIN | VN VIN sleqanl [L | ZP9E0LOv8H | D-L0-Sd Li uopelg duing
proy 3331) peoy ysau) sieqin],
0 o ¥861 V/N YIN VIN 9 DAd 099¢ 0 $6 00r Papooly SleqanL ([ A~T208-80 L0-Sd ‘uongyg duing
NUDAY ANUSAY Uead0
0 0f v861 VIN VIN YIN OAd £ 8¢ SII papeo]d ueadsQ Z61 A-1108-80 90-Sd ‘uopelg dwng
f33RS uley 12008 UERY
0 0€ 0L6l VIN V/N VIN 4 uoJ] ISED S£9 £ 6T (4} ynos 9, L6T- 178880 $0-8d yinog :uoyelg dwng
INUIAY Jojersusn)
6Z 0¢ 8102 auedoig 0T HAE 08y | VIN VIN V/IN VIN | VN VIN ueasQ 08 66S6£E081D | O-¥0-Sd i uopeys dwng
anuaAy a1 sHoIYD
67 of 8107 V/IN VIN VIN 9 uoy] yse) $ST S [44 00F s|qisiuigng | ueadQ 08 ¥0-Sd ‘uonerg duing
INUIAY 10)213U30)
6C 0f 810C auedoig 0z HAEO8Y | V/N V/N VIN VN | VIN VN ueasQ g | 6SS6EEO8ID | O-£0-Sd £4 uongyg duing
anudAY 1934 AusAID
6T 0¢ 8107 YIN VN VIN 9 o] 1se) $9¢ 0l S8 008 uE30) £ £0-Sd :uopels dumg
ydg 10]EI3U30)
0 0 $861 auedorg ST A80T VIN VIN VN VIN | VIN V/IN WETIRN S | WH6EZEWDS | D-70-Sd 7# uogeyg duing
aue]
0 0f 6461 VIN V/N VIN 9 DAd 0501 SL (44 031 Papoo[4 SURT NS | A-1Z08-80 20-Sd I uonelg duing
@A) g (up)
njasn AT esn A [Png M adejjop | 2mg ESIIAL 1| (1) miamay dH | HAL NdD adAy SSAIppPY AN jass e
Sy papadxy | papeIsuy E.,m UIRWIDIIO0,] | UTBIIIIIO] [Euag # A B
SLASSY NOLLVLS dINNd



) - ) 0MJIYSM 0€-T vitivl
peoy amnyseg peoy
PlaLaYem SIMSES PlOY{EM
[ 0¢ 8861 VIN VIN V/IN ¥ aAd 4 J[qsewqng [44 LI-8d wwopels dung
uno)
uo)dunsem Hno)) uoldurysem
0 0¢ 8861 VIN VN VIN 4 oAd 092 4 djqissamqng V6 91-8d uopeys duing
MY €1 aALq 2AL(] BOISAG
3 0t 2661 VIN VIN V/IN [4 oAd o€t [4 9 or sjqiswqng | Hoosald 9 S1-8d :uopeyg dwing
dqisiawqng
fRemyBTH -KemySiy
€ 0t 661 VIN VIN V/IN 8 DAd 348 S siqusiamqng | s, 3uny pz[ ¥1-Sd s3ury :uoneys dwng
g-evVeL
awug KemydH dwnd/gy auey
£ 0¢ 2661 VIN VIN VIN 8 JAd 0651 SEl £y 4 uogong s dury gi¢ -LL6-T6 £1-8d sBury :uogerg dwng
KemySryg JojRIaUAD)
|4 0f £661 getcilel 8¢ HdE 08y | VIN VIN VIN VIN | VN VIN s 3ury 00¢ Z08E0E D-TI-8d 714 uoneyg duing
a4-Evid
suIug Aemydiq dwnd/g uie-AemySIH
£C 0€ (4014 VN V/IN VIN 8 OAd 4 134 €L 137 uogong s, 3ury 00€ -9L67C6 [45°: s3upy :uoneys dng
peoy peoy
0 0€ <861 VIN VIN VIN 14 JAd 0LE 4 1z 001 PRPOOLd SITAL LY A-0108-80 11-8d ST :uonelg dwing
Hdt 108 10ye19uah)
[44 0f 1102 auedorg ST A80C VIN VIN VIN VIN | VN VIN UreW pL1 8TTRII0E D-01-Sd 01# uonelg dung
#2318 a1enbg
0 0t #3861 VN VN VN OAd 01 84 005 ureN $L1 A-6008-80 01-8d ade)) :uoneg dwng’
Hd¢ PeoY H331) Jojeraussy
T 0t 1102 auedold o€ ABOT VIN VN V/IN VIN | VN VN Apped | SE1610€ D-60-Sd 6# uoneg dwng
QIX) 211 (un)
ajI] [MJIS() IV [euep | {3) Pudy Jqump
mjasy PRy M adejop | oms dH | HAL 4D adAy, SSaIpPy #3988y JUIBN
Surmpemoy PaRdxs | paq[wIsuf i UJEWIII0] | WIBWIADION [LIBELN




4.3.2 Capital Improvement Plan

WWTF, pump stations and sewer system asset replacement costs over the 20-year planning period
are summarized in Table 4-3. These estimates do not include costs for field surveys, engineering,

construction management, and contingency.

TABLE 4-3
WWTF 20-YEAR REPLACEMENT COST SUMMARY!

Asset Description 0-5Years | 6-10 Years | 11-15 Years | 16-20 Years | Asset Totals
WWTF $1,580,000 |  $110,000 $3,965,000 | $3,068,000 $8,723,000
Pump Station $785,000 $435,000 $950,000 $2,140,000 $4,310,000
Collection System $3,620,000 | $5093,000 | $5775000 | $3,405,000 | $17,893,000

Timetable Subtotals | $5,985,000 | $5638,000 | $10,690,000 | $8,613,000 =
GRAND TOTAL - - - - $30,926,000

2. Replacement costs do not include field surveys, engineering, construction management, and contingency costs

Table 4-6 represents a proposed five-year capital improvement plan for high priority assets
recommended for renewal in the 0 to 5-year timetable. Similar assets have been grouped into
capital improvement projects for convenience of construction activities. Funding sources for the
capital improvement projects have been assumed for budgeting purposes. The Town of
Kennebunkport is encouraged to explore all available funding options discussed in Section 4.4,

Potential Capital Funding Sources.

The annual costs for each fiscal year in Table 4-6 represent the equivalent annual debt service cost
to finance each capital project. An annual interest rate of 1.5% for SRF loan funding was used to

determine the equivalent annual debt service cost.

The project costs in Table 4-6 included a 40% budget factor to account for field surveys,

engineering, construction management, and contingency costs.

14227A 4-5 Wright-Pierce




201913993 M 9 vyl
-10je10ua3 Kouo3iown Aq-pues pue uoyes dund awp Jo Juswsoe|dal sapnjout 1oaford uonelg dung peoy 10WsIJ SPIM. '€
-uf1sop Areuusijaid Suunp pamslaal aq pinoys A[1q1se0} SuIMI[al Jamag “IANBALISUCD 3q 0} 59nbIU 3} UORONOSUOD UOPBABOXA JOUAL) no-uado Suisn pajewnnss u3aq dAeY S1S00 jo0l01d 1omag 7
‘saseyd udisop Jeuy pue Areununijerd uump pajepdn aq pnoys 5)509 103014 "UGHE[JUI 10 JUNGOOE JOU Op pue SIB[OP (6107 AEIA) juasaid uj ale sajewsa 1800300f01g |
-— Y
(150'38+5) (150'88$) (150°88¢$) (150'8898) SsLees TVLOL ANVED
(T10'9%) (60£°918) (60£91%) - - - 000°660°IS TVLOLENS
. : SNOLLVLS
(€0L°LYS) - - - - NVOT Jd8 ¥VIA-0T 000618$ ¢NOLLY.LS dWNd AvO¥ LOMNISIA SAATIM DG
(60£°918) (60£°918) (60£°918) - -~ NVOT JUS dVAA-0Z 0000823 NOILVL1S dJWNd ANNTAY NVEDO
(681°567%) (681°S678) (681°S678) (681°56Z$) - - 000°890°S$ TVLOLENS
(sTL'LTS) (sTL'LTs) (szL'LTs) (szL°Les) - NVOT 2dS dVAA-0T 0009t SYEMIS HOVEA $AD0UES00D
NVOT T4S HVIA-0T 00089¢°1$ SHANGS VARV LS T00HDS
(089°6L$) (089'6L8) (089'6L$) (089°6LS) - ® NIVIN 3004 INAVTAqd alma | WALSAS
NOLLDATTI0D
. SUAMAS VIAY LS ANIVIN
. . NVOT 248 dVIA-0T 0008€L$
(S86°Tr$) (S86°TY$) (586°7+8) (s86°zv$) - ¥ NIV 50404 # Sd
(66L'¥r18) (66LvV1S) (66L'YP1E) (66L VP - NVO'T 198 ¥VAA-0T 000'98+'Z$ SUAMIS VARV ANNIAY NVED0
Ov8'8T13) (0¥8'8Z1%) (96T'L¥$) (96T°Lt$) - 00021778 VLOLANS
(0p6°L18) (ov6'L1$) (0p6°L1S) (0¥6°'L1$) NVO'T IS UVHA-0T 000'80€$ INVTd INGNLVEIL JOLVHEANAD | x111IDvda
(pps'189) (bPS18%) - - - NVOT TS YVAA-0T 000°00¥°1$ Z# % 1# SSTUJ WAL 1134 | INIWLVIAL
(8£9°%18) (8£9°'v19) (8L9'P1$) (8L9'v18) (8L9°119) NVOT S HVAA0Z 000'Z57$ 7 MHLERYVT) AV INOUID | HALYMILSVAL
(8L9°P1%) (8L9°%19$) (829°¢1%) (8L9'v1$) (8L9719) NVOT 44§ AVdA-0T 000'75Z$ 1# 43N VIO AVINOAID
vZAA €TAL TIAL 17A4 07TAd ADUNOS DONIANNA #1800 1L0Arodd NOLLJIIDSIA LOArOAd

NVId INTNFAQUJIAIL TVLIAVD ¥VIA-S AAS0d0Ud

v+ ATdV.L



L,_




‘ item 7

. TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT
Street Opening Permit

PROPERTY INFORMATION A'LL
Name of Homeowner: @ DC{ YL \L{qu_, '('Q(f\,(_n_S Date: _ ;_,
Address:__L1 SL[ > ’PV“{_&.‘"\Q ‘e L"V’\ < —P\A\ /); W G AT M S

Telephone: L), . vy — &) — "I{ R ~ Zg Map, Block, Lot: @O e _\_—}@ o
Street to be excavated: ( é. (NS 1 O('Q ? A— -
Size of excavation (length and width); 3 = X %5/ / — - B
Reason for excavation: [\ S oot & S o Lo 7/ N = O, T~

Permit Conditions: If there is, any intrusion into the black top, road should be paved from curb to curb.

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION

Date of excavation: J;'_;/"?'/ 2020 — [ I‘_-‘:_,J’e / 2820 —

Name of Contractor: (r ec '_‘\}-l - B’w-“\" > Sen LTac . — e
Address:_ £ Ol Falls QN | Kenncbouk ME B —
Telephone: 145 — | £ HL B L —— —

BOND & INSURANCE INFORMATION

Performance Bond: O Cash O Check O Money Order O Surety Bond O Other

Bond Amount: l 20000 . (o8 S —

Company that issued the bond Gf applicable): L (= L T ., o rpon ooy aaun N

Person or entity providing the bond to the Town (contractor, property owner, other): C po ‘\+J" oa g 1 o

-

Insurance Company: (" /- V1 U0 Ao oy Mg [ e ..\.1_};1«___.»_-3_7'. e — .

Signature of person completing the application: MM te:ld /2. Z Z 2025
Mack Rl MQQ,_&%@A_M&M@&_,E%@JL@__
APPROVED

l !g ! r z) * See Note Page 3 of Application
Highway Superintendent: Selectmen:

Selectmen: - o . Selectmen: R
Selectmen: Selectmen: S -
Date Approved: o Application Fee: $25.00

Date Paid: /(7 ~ 5 - 20O
*Please attach map or sketch showing the location Amount Paid: J 2. 00 -
and size of any cuts to be made; a bond; and proof O Cash W Check 1 Money Order

of insurance. 320






To whom it may concern
20 Langsford Road
Map,Block, Lot 30-1-30

KKW has a $ 5000.00 deposit paid previously by the homeowner to cover grind and repaving.

It required two openings as water and sewer lines cannot be in the same trench.

Keith Archibald with KKW feels this is sufficient to cover the original and additional road cut resufacing
homeowner agrees to cover any additional paving costs if needed.

Note: Mike Claus met with Mike Jordan of PTl on 10/5/2020.
PTI will extend mill and pavement fill 20 feet beyond edge of new cut for sewer and
underground electrical and internet/cable TV wiring. Total cost for complete mill and
pavement fill work, including KKW cut and sewer/undergound wiring cut will be $6,000.
Home Owner to provde payment of $1,000 to cover additional cost of mill and fill work.
New road cut to be based in with 3" minimum of paving this fall. Mill and pavement fill
work to be done in the spring of 2021.

Underground wiring needed to avoid installtion of a 10 ft. tall masthead on the front of the
new structure at 20 Langsford Road.

-- Michael Claus, Kennebunkport Public Works Director



LICENSE OR PERMIT BOND
BOND NO. S-862416

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT WE,

George Burr & Son Inc of
69 Old Falls Road Kennebunk ME_ 04043 as Principal, and
NGM Insurance Company , a Florida corporation with its principal
office at_46(1. Touchton Rd East Ste 3400 Jacksonville, FL 32245-8000 , as Surety,
are held and firmly bound unto

Town of Kennebunkport

in the sum of Two Thousand and 060/100 Dollars

($2.000 ), for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we bind ourseives, our
personal representatives, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is such, that whereas the Principal has obtained, or shall obtain, a license or permit from

the Obligee for Street Opening

at 20 Langsford Road, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 for the term commencing on the __1st__ day of
October , 2020 andendingonthe __ 1st dayof October , 2021

NOW, THEREFORE, if Principal shall faithfully observe and comply with all terms of the underlying license or permit,and
all Ordinances, Rules and Regulations, and any Amendments thereto, applicable to the obligation of this bond, then this
obligation shall become void and of no effect, otherwise to be and remain in full force and virtue.

The Surety may, if it shall so elect, cancel this bond by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Obligee and the bond
shall be deemed canceled at the expiration of said period; the Surety remaining liable, however subject to all the terms,
conditions and provisions of this bond, for any act or acts covered which may have been committed by the Principal up to
the date of such cancellation.

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond may be continued from year to year by certificate executed by the Surety hereon.
Regardless of the number of years or terms this bond remains in effect, and regardiess of the number and amount of
claims that may be made, the maximum aggregate liability of the Surety is limited to the penal sum of the bond.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DATED on this __1st __ day of October , 2020

George Burr & Son Inc

\
By ¥
Kenneth G. Burr Hll
NGM Insurance Company
By (ﬁ M / C/& L,

Lisa Ricker

68-QQ-0002-20



-

e NGM INSURANCE COMPANY POWER OF ATTORNEY

A member of Tho Main Streat America Group
S-882416

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That NGM Insurance Company, a Florida corporation having its principal office
in the City of Jacksonville, State of Florida, pursuant to Article IV, Section 2 of the By-Laws of said Company, to wit:
"SECTION 2, The board of directors, the president, any vice president, secretary, or the treasurer shall have the power
and authority to appoint attorneys-in~fact and to authorize them to execute on behalf of the company and affix the seal
of the company thereto, bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity or writings obligatory in the nature of a bond,
recognizance or conditional undertaking and to remove any such attorneys-in-fact at any time and revoke the power
and authority given to them."
does hereby make, constitute and appoint Lisa Ricker _ its true and lawful Attorey-in-fact, to make,
execute, seal and deliver for and on its behalf, and as its act and deed bond number S-882416 dated October 1, 2020
on behalf of *** George Burr & Son Inc ****
in favor of Town of Kennebunkport
for Two Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($ 2,000
and to bind NGM Insurance Company thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such instrument was signed by the duly authorized

officers of NGM Insurance Company; this act of said Attorney is hereby ratified and confirmed.

This power of attorney is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following resolution adopted by the Directors
of NGM Insurance Company at a meeting duly called and held on the 2nd day of December 1977.
Voted: That the signature of any officer authorized by the By-Laws and the company seal may be affixed by facsimile to any
power of attomney or special power of attorney or certification of either given for the execution of any bond, undertaking,
recognizance or other written obligation in the nature thereof; such signature and seal, when 5o used being hereby adopted
by the company as the original signature of such officer and the original seal of the company, to be valid and binding upon
the company with the same force and effect as though manually affixed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NGM Insurance Company has caused these presents to be signed by its Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed this 7th day of January, 2020,

NGM INSURANCE COMPANY By: %v\buljﬁ(- o> @

Kimberly K. Law

State of Florida, Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

County of Duval

On this 7th day of January, 2020, before the subscriber a Notary Public of State of Florida in and for the County of Duval duly
commissioned and qualified, came Kimberly K, Law of NGM Insurance Company, to me personally known to be the officer described
hereiti M@ ho executed the preceding instrument, and she acknowledged the execution of same, and being by me fully sworn, deposed
and said that she is an officer of said Company, aforesaid: that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the corporate seal of said
Company, and the said corporate seal and her signature as officer were duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the

authori d direction of the said Company; that Article IV, Section 2 of the By-Laws of said Company is now in force.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed by official seal at Jacksonville, Florida this 7th day of January,

2020. AR

Toot bt 30 BEET |

P W N W W e

L, Nancy Giordano-Ramos, Vice President of NGM Insurance Company, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and
correct copy of a Power of Attorney executed by said Company which is still in force and effect. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have
hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Company at Jacksonville, Florida this 1st day of October , 2020

WARNING: Any unauthorized reproduction or alteration of this document is prohibited.
TO CONFIRM VALIDITY of the attached bond please call 1-800-225-5646.
TO SUBMIT A CLAIM: Send all correspondence to 55 West Street, Keene, NH 03431 Attn: Bond Claims.



"N DATE (MDDYYYY)
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

10/01/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL SNSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
~4hi# cortificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

Lyons Agency for Insurance | N, ey (207) 9852001 o [ fnu_q {207) 985-2032
R0 Box 950 %; Fricker@LyonsAgencylnsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICE |

Kennebunk ME 04043 INSURERA : Ynion Insurance Co 25844
INSURED insurerg; Acadia Insurance Co. 31325

GEORGE BURR & SON, INC. BSURERC:

£9 OLD FALLS ROAD NSURER D :

MSURER E :

KENNEBUNK ME 04043 S —

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2020 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

RUGLISUBR EFF
w TYPE OF INSURANCE MSD | WvD | POLICY NUMBER [&HCO}FYYY\'] m LINITS
~=13¢| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
"DAWAGE TO RENTED
| cLaMs-maDE IE OCCUR PREMISES (Es occurence) | $ J00000
MED EXP (Any one person) ¢ 10,000
A - _ CPA0348866-20 06/30/2020 | 06/30/2021 | prpoonaL & ADV INJURY 5 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
X pouicy D B L__I Lo¢ PRODUCTS - CONPIOPAGG | § 000,000
-l -.| OTHER: ] S - M L —
Wm chamNED ?lNGLE UMIT s 1,000,000
ANY AUTO BODALY INJURY (Perperson} | §
™11 D /| SCHEDULED
Bl | AUTOS ONLY x| ATTos CAAD348866-20 06/30/2020 | 06/30/2021 | BODILY ::.lvmv {Per accidern) | $
| ><] AuTos ony >< AUTOS ONLY 'npu'mmm ?""“'“GE $
Uninsured motorist Bl- $ 1,000,000
<] umBrEULALAB | X< occur EACH OCCURRENCE 2,000,000
B EXCESS LinB CLAMSMADE CUAD348869-20 06/30/2020 | 08/30/2021 | sneoneaarE s 2,000,000
DED l | reTenmON 5 - — s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PE OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN | Sarure | ] £R
PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE ]
PR coidiiie i ey 200 NIA WCAD348870-21 06/20/2020 | 0&/30/2029 | EL EACHACCIDENT § 100,000
Ba E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | § 500,000
IF yes, descrive under
| DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 1 R i . __ | EL DisEASE - POLICY UMiT | 5 500,000
|
— —

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VEHICLES (AOORIHM.WWMMMWTMD_WHW

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED WN
Town of Kennebunkport ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
6 Eim Street
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
R ) AF a
- Kenrebu ME 04043 o i ey
— L nnebunkport § e 1“{;‘3{0’ .
©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD







TOWNOF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~

MAINE’S FINEST RESORT

To: Board of Selectmen/Assessors

From: Becky R. Nolette, CMA, Assessors Agent®
Date: October 8, 2020

Re: Municipal Valuation Return

Attached please find the completed Municipal Valuation Return for the Town
which requires your signatures. This report is due annually by November 1st
and the information provided is used in our State Valuation as well as in
determining our Homestead, Veterans and Current Use reimbursements.

The MVR provides the State an overview of municipal tax records.

If you have any questions, please let me know.



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

=
14
2 > (36 M.R.S. § 383)
§ E_ DUE DATE - NOVEMBER 1, 2020 (or within 30 days of commitment, whichever is later)
=1 B
c .
T <  1.County: YORK Commitment Date: ~ 7123/2020
% _ B mm/dd/yyyy
i 2. Municipality | KENNEBUNKPORT
3. 2020 Certified Ratio (Percentage of current just value upon which assessments are based.) I 90.00% B 1
Homestead, veterans, blind, and BETE Exemptions, Tree Growth and Farmland values must be adjusted by this percentage
TAXABLE VALUATION OF REAL ESTATE
(Exclude exempt valuation of all categories)
4. Land (include value of transmission, distribution lines and substations, dams and power houses) 4 1,055,085,100
5. Buildings 5| 946,871,700
6. Total taxable valuation of real estate (sum of lines 4 & 5 above) 6  2,001,9 —é,—swd—()j
(must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 1) -
TAXABLE VALUATION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY
(Exclude exempt valuation of all categories)
7. Production machinery and equipment 7 5,269,09@
8. Business equipment (furniture, furnishings and fixtures) 8 1,82_5,0:10
9. All other personal property 9 1,965,740
10. Total taxable valuation of personal property (sum of lines 7 through 9 above) 10 9,65§:906 '
(must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 2) -
OTHER TAX INFORMATION
11. Total taxable valuation of real estate and personal property (sum of lines 6 & 10 above) 11 2,011,016,700
{must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 3) - )
12. 2020 Property Tax Rate (example .01520) 12[ 0.009450
13. 2020 Property Tax Levy (includes overlay and any fractional gains from rounding) 13!_ - ‘ $19,061,i67.§2 ,
Note: This is the exact amount of 2020 tax actually committed to the collector - T
(must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 19)
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT CLAIM
Homestead exemptions must be adjusted by the municipality's certified ratio
14. a. Total number of $25,000 homestead exemptions granted 14a 829
b. Total exempt value for all $25,000 homestead exemptions granted (Line 14a x $25,000) 14b. 18,652,500
¢. Total number of properties fully exempted (valued less than $25,000) by homestead 14¢/| 0
exemptions granted
d. Total exempt value for all properties fully exempted (valued less than $25,000) by 14d 6
homestead exemptions granted
e. Total number of homestead exemptions granted (sum of 14a & 14c) 14e s = 829 j
f. Total exempt value for all homestead exemptions granted (sum of 14b & 14d) 14f| 18,652,500
(Must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 4a) Bl
g. Total assessed value of all homestead qualified property (land and buildings) 14g 394,668,100

-4-



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT

BUSINESS EQUIPMENT TAX EXEMPTION (BETE) REIMBURSEMENT CLAIM

15. a. Number of BETE applications processed for tax year 2020 15a 24
b. Number of BETE applications approved 15b 2
c. Total exempt value of all BETE qualified property 15¢ 1,569,780
(Must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 5a) -
d Total exempt value of BETE property located in 2 municipal retention TIF district 15d
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING (TIF)
16. a. Total amount of increased taxable valuation above original assessed value within 16a -
TIF districts
b. Amount of captured assessed value within TIF districts 16b
c. Property tax revenue that is appropriated and deposited into either a project
cost account or a sinking fund account 16¢
d. BETE reimbursement revenue that is appropriated and deposited into either a project
cost account or a sinking fund account 16d_ $0.00
(Lines 16¢ and 16d combined must match Municipal Tax Rate Calculation Standard Form page 10, line 9)
EXCISE TAX _
17. a. Enter whether excise taxes are collected based on a calendar or fiscal year 17a _%CAL
b. Motor vehicle excise tax collected 17b $1,084,101.00
¢. Watercraft excise tax collected 17¢ $1 3,91 0.00
ELECTRICAL GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION PROPERTY
18.  Total valuation of distribution and transmission lines owned by electric utility companies 18 $6,190,300 |
19. Total valuation of all electrical generation facilities 19 $0
FOREST LAND CLASSIFIED UNDER THE TREE GROWTH TAX LAW PROGRAM
(36 M.R.S. §§ 571 - 584-A)
20. Average per acre unit value used for undeveloped acreage (land not classified) 20 $5,000
21. Classified forest land. (Do Not include land classified in Farmiand as woodland)
a. Number of parcels classified as of April 1, 2020 21a 13
b. Softwood acreage 21b 10.00
c. Mixed wood acreage 21c 247.00
d. Hardwood acreage 21d 373.00
e. Total number of acres of forest land only (sum of lines 21 b, ¢, and d above) 21e| Ve 630.00
22. Total assessed valuation of all classified forest land for tax year 2020 22 230,200
a. Per acre values used to assess Tree Growth classified forest land value:
(1) Softwood 22a(1) 3,900.00
(2) Mixed Wood 22a(2)L 101,700.00
(3) Hardwood 22a(3)|_ ~ 124,600.00




MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT
TREE GROWTH TAX LAW CONTINUED
23. Number of forestland acres first classified for tax year 2020 23 0.00
24. Land withdrawn from Tree Growth classification (36 M.R.S. § 581)
a. Total number of parcels withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 24a - __ B 0|
b. Total number of acres withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 24b B |
c. Total value of penalties assessed by the municipality due to withdrawal of 24c| |
classified Tree Growth land from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 - o
d. Total number of $500 penaities assessed for non-compliance 24d - '
24-1  Since April 1, 2019, have any Tree Growth acres been transferred to Farmland? 241,  NO Yes/No
LAND CLASSIFIED UNDER THE FARM AND OPEN SPACE TAX LAW PROGRAM
(36 M.R.S. §§ 1101 to 1121)
FARM LAND: B
25. Number of parcels classified as Farmland as of April 1, 2020 25| 5
26. Number of acres first classified as Farmland for tax year 2020 26 0.00 |
27. a. Total number of acres of all land now classified as Farmland 27a . 17.87 |
(Do not include Farm woodiand) _ B
b. Total valuation of all land now classified as Farmland 27b) 6,500
(Do not include Farm woodland)
28. a. Number of Farm woodland acres:
(1) Softwood acreage 28a(1)
(2) Mixed wood acreage ) 28a(2) t‘@GE
(3) Hardwood acreage 28a(3)'. -
b. Total number of acres of all land now classified as Farm woodland 28b[ By 45.36
¢. Total valuation of all land now classified as Farm woodland 28c| : 1 8,600 |
d. Per acre rates used for Farm woodland: - -
(1) Softwood 28d(1)| 386
(2) Mixed Wood 28d2) 412
(3) Hardwood 284(3) 334
29. Land withdrawn from Farmland classification (36 M.R.S. § 1112)
a. Total number of parcels withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 29a 0
b. Total number of acres withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 29b - 0.00
¢c. Total value of penalties assessed by the municipality due to the withdrawal
of classified Farmland from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 29c¢| $0_.00 |
OPEN SPACE:
30. Number of parcels classified as Open Space as of April 1, 2020 30 6
31. Number of acres first classified as Open Space for tax year 2020 31 ' 0.00
32. Total number of acres of land now classified as Open Space 32 - 8_53@ |
33. Total valuation of all land now classified as Open Space 33| 51 ,ﬁo



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT
OPEN SPACE CONTINUED
34. Land withdrawn from Open Space classification (36 M.R.S. § 1112)
a. Total number of parcels withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 34a 0
b. Total number of acres withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 34b 0.00
c. Total value of penalties assessed by the municipality due to the withdrawal o
of classified Open Space land from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 34c $6.00
LAND CLASSIFIED UNDER THE WORKING WATERFRONT TAX LAW
(36 M.R.S. §§ 1131 - 1140-B)
35. Number of parcels classified as Working Waterfront as of April 1, 2020 35 1
36. Number of acres first classified as Working Waterfront for tax year 2020 36 ._ 660
37. Total acreage of all land now classified as Working Waterfront 37 0.13
38. Total valuation of all land now classified as Working Waterfront 38 40,000
39. Land withdrawn from Working Waterfront classification (36 M.R.S. § 1138)
a. Total number of parcels withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 39a 0
b. Total number of acres withdrawn from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 39 : 0.00
c. Total value of penalties assessed by the municipality due to the withdrawal o
of classified Working Waterfront land from 4/2/19 through 4/1/20 39¢ $0.00
EXEMPT PROPERTY
{36 M.R.S. §§ 651, 652, 653, 654-A, 656)
40. Enter the exempt value of all the following classes of property which are exempt from property taxation by law.
a. Public Property (§ 651(1)(A) and (B))
(1) United States 40a(1)| $7,560,400
(2) State of Maine (excluding roads) 40a(2)| $607,900
Total value of public property (40a(1) + 40a(2) 40a [ 32,1'6'3’300
b. Real estate owned by the Water Resources Board of the State of
New Hampshire located within this state (§ 651(1)(B-1)) 40b 0
c. Property of any public municipal corporation of this state (including county -
property) appropriated to public uses (§ 651(1)(D)) 40c 16,532,900
(County, Municipal, Quasi-Municipal owned property) .
d. Pipes, fixtures, hydrants, conduits, gatehouses, pumping stations, reservoirs
and dams of a public municipal corporation supplying water, power or light 40d 1 ,4_81 ,200
if located outside the limits of the municipality (§ 651(1)(E)) o
e. Airport or landing field of a public municipal corporation used for airport or
aeronautical purposes (§ 651(1)(F)) 40e 6
f. Landing area of a privately owned airport when owner grants free use of that
landing area to the public (§ 656(1)(C)) 40f 0
9. Pipes, fixtures, conduits, buildings, pumping stations, and other facilities
of a public municipal corporation used for sewerage disposal if located 40g 0

outside the limits of the municipality (§ 651(1)(G))



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT

40. h.

EXEMPT PROPERTY CONTINUED

Property of benevolent and charitable institutions. (§ 652(1)(A))

i. Property of literary and scientific institutions. (§ 652(1)(B))

. Property of the American Legion, Veterans of Foreign Wars, American Veterans,

Sons of Union Veterans of the Civil War, Disabled American Veterans and
Navy Clubs of the USA. (§ 652(1)(E))

1) Total exempt value of veterans organizations.

2) Exempt value attributable to purposes other than meetings,
ceremonials, or instruction facilities (reimbursable exemption).

. Property of chambers of commerce or boards of trade (§ 652(1)(F))
. Property of houses of religious worship and parsonages (§ 652(1)(G))

1) Number of parsonages within this municipality

2) Total exempt value of those parsonages

3) Total taxable value of those parsonages

4) Total exempt value of all houses of religious worship

TOTAL EXEMPT VALUE OF ALL HOUSES OF RELIGIOUS WORSHIP
AND PARSONAGES (Sum of lines 401(2) + 40I(4))

. Property owned or held in trust for fraternal organizations operating under the

lodge system (do not include college fratemities) (§ 652(1)(H))

. Personal property leased by a benevolent and charitable organization exempt from

taxation under § 501 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 and the primary

purpose is the operation of a hospital licensed by the Dept. of Health and Human

Services, health maintenance organization or blood bank (§ 652(1)K))
{Value of property owned by a hospital should be reported on line 40h)

. Exempt value of real property of all persons determined to be legally blind

(§ 654-A) ( $4,000 adjusted by certified ratio)

. Aqueducts, pipes and conduits of any corporation supplying a municipality

with water (§ 656(1)(A))

. Animal waste storage facilities constructed after April 1, 1999 and certified

as exempt by the Commissioner of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry
(§ 656(1)(.))) (reimbursable exemption)

. Pollution control facilities that are certified as such by the Commissioner

of Environmental Protection (§ 656(1)(E))

. Snowmobile trail grooming equipment registered under

12 M.R.S. § 13113 (§ 655(1)(T)) (reimbursable exemption)

-5-

40h

401

40 j(1)

40j(2)

40k

40 1(1)|

401(2)|

413

40 1(4)

sof

40m|

40n

400

40p|

40q

40ri

40s

15,523,000

4,555,300

60,000
4,453,500
9,955,900 |

- 10,015,900

1,015,400

6,868,900



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN
Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT

40t. VETERANS EXEMPTIONS - The following information is necessary in order to calculate reimbursement. (36 M.R.S. § 653)

SECTION 1: The section is only for those veterans who served during a federally recognized war period

NUMBER OF
Widower: EXEMPTIONS EXEMPT VALUE
1. Living male spouse or male parent of a deceased veteran 40t(1)A 40t(1)B
$6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(D))
Revocable Living Trusts:
2. Paraplegic veteran (or their widow) who is the beneficiary 404(2)A 40t(2)B

of a revocable living trust. $50,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(D-1))

3. All other veterans (or their widows) who are the beneficiaries of 40t(3)A 40t(3)B
revocable living trusts. $6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(C) or (D))

WW | Veterans:

4. WW | veteran (or their widow) enlisted as Maine resident 40t(4)A 40t(4)B

$7,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(C-1)or (D-2))

5. WW | veteran (or their widow) enlisted as non-Maine resident 40t(5)A 40t(5)B
$7,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)}(C-1) or (D-2))

Paraplegic Veterans:

6. Paraplegic status veteran or their unremarried widow. 401(6)A 40t(6)B
$50,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(D-1))

Cooperative Housing Corporation Veterans:

7. Qualifying Shareholder of Cooperative Housing Corporation 40t(7)A 404(7)B
$6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(2))

All Other Veterans:

8. All other veterans (or their widows) enlisted as Maine 404(8)A 45 40t(8)B $243,000
residents. $6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(C)(1))

9. All other veterans (or their widows) enlisted as non-Maine 40t(9)A 76 40(9)B $410,400
residents. $6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(C)1))

SECTION 2: This section is only for those veterans who did not_serve during a federally recoanized war period

NUMBER OF
EXEMPTIONS EXEMPT VALUE
10. Veteran (or their widow) disabled in the line of duty. 40t(10)A 40t(10)B
$6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio (§ 653(1)(C)2) or (D))
11. Veteran (or their widow) who served during the 40t(11)A 401(11)8

periods from August 24, 1982 to July 31, 1984 and
December 20, 1989 to January 31, 1990. $6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio. [§ 653(1)(C)(1) or (D)]

12. Veteran (or their widow) who served during the period from 40t(12)A 40t(12)B
February 27, 1961 and August 5, 1964, but did not serve prior
to February 1, 1955 or after August 4, 1964. $6,000 adjusted by the certified ratio. [§ 6563(1)(C)(1) or (D)}

Total number of ALL veteran exemptions granted in 2020 40t(A) 121

Total exempt value of ALL veteran exemptions granted in tax year 2020 40t(B) 653,400
-6-



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT

40.

40.

EXEMPT PROPERTY CONTINUED
u. Solar and wind energy equipment. § 655(1)(U) & 656(1)(k) (reimbursable exemption).

1) Total number of solar and wind energy equipment applications processed. 40 u(1)
2) Total number of solar and wind energy equipment applications approved. 40 u(2)|
3) Total exempt value of solar and wind energy equipment. 40 u(3)

v. Other. The Laws of the State of Maine provide for exemption of quasi-municipal organizations such as authorities

districts and trust commissions. These exemptions will not be found in Title 36.

Examples: Section 5114 of Titie 30-A provides for exemption of real and personal property of an Urban Renewal
Authority or Chapter 164, P. & S.L. of 1971 provides for exemption of real estate owned by the Cobbossee-
Annabessacook Authority. (See also 30-A M.R.S., § 5413, Revenue Producing Municipal Facilities Act.)

Enter the full name of the organization in your municipality that has been granted exempt status through such
a law, the provision of the law granting the exemption and the estimated full value of real property.

NAME OF ORGANIZATION PROVISION OF LAW EXEMPT VALUE
RSU 21 I ] ) | $2,912,800
i . u | ==
TOTAL avl 2,912,800
40. TOTAL VALUE OF ALL PROPERTY EXEMPTED BY LAW 40| 68,124,000 |
{sum of all exempt value)
MUNICIPAL RECORDS
41. a. Does your municipality have tax maps? 41a| YES YESINO

42.

43.

44,

if yes, proceed to b, ¢ and d. If no, move to line 42. Give date when tax maps were griginally obtained and name of contractor.

(This does not refer to the annual updating of tax maps.)

b. Date 416 4/111974 mmiddlyyyy
c. Name of contractor 41c/ AVIS AIR MAPS

d. Are your tax maps PAPER, GIS, or CAD? #MdGIS

Enter the number of land parcels within your municipality

{Not the number of tax bills) 42
Total taxable land acreage in your municipality. 43
a. Has a professional town-wide revaluation been completed in your municipality?

if yes, please answer the questions below. 44a YES "_YESINO
If no, please proceed to line 45.
b. Did the revaluation include any of the following? Please enter each category with YES or NO.

440 (1)) YES LAND

44b(2)) YES |BUILDINGS

3844/
12469.97

44b(3) YES |PERSONAL PROPERTY

c. Effective Date 44c|4/1/2009 mm/ddlyyyy
d. Contractor Name 44d|VISION APPRAISAL
e. Cost 44¢ $287,000

-7-



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT

MUNICIPAL RECORDS CONTINUED

45. Enter the best choice that describes how the municipality administers its assessment function. Choose
SINGLE ASSESSOR, ASSESSORS' AGENT or BOARD OF ASSESSORS. Include the name of any single assessor or agent.

a) Function 452 ASSESSORS AGENT
b) Name 45b REBECCA NOLETTE
c) Email address 45¢ bnolette@kennebunkportme.gov

46. Enter the beginning and ending dates of the fiscal year in your municipality.

FROM 46a 7/1/12020 TO 46b 6/30/2021
mm/dd/yyyy mm/dd/yyyy
47. Interest rate charged on overdue 2020 property taxes (36 M.R.S. § 505) 47 19.00
(not to exceed 9.00%)
48. Date(s) that 2020 property taxes are due. 48a 9/10/2020 48b
48¢ 3/10/2021 48d
mm/dd/yyyy mm/ddiyyyy

49. Are your assessment records computerized?

4%a YES YESINO Name of software used 49b VISION GOVT SOLUTIONS

50. Has your municipality implemented a local property tax relief program under 36 M.R.S. § 6232(1)?

50a. YES YES/NO How many people qualified? 50b 11
How much relief was granted? 50c $3,176.50
51. Has your municipality implemented a local senior volunteer tax credit program under 36 M.R.S. § 6232(1-A)?
51a NO |YES/NO How many people qualified? 51b

How much relief was granted? 51c
52. Has your municipality implemented a local property tax deferral for senior citizens under 36 M.R.S. § 62717
52a. NO YESINO How many people qualified? 52b

How much relief was granted? 52¢

/We, the Assessor(s) of the Municipality of KENNEBUNKPORT do state that the

foregoing information contained herein is, to the best knowledge and belief of this office, reported correctly
and that all of the requirements of the law have been followed in valuing, listing and submitting the information.

ASSESSOR(S)
SIGNATURES

DATE
mm/dd/yyyy

NOTICE: This return must be completed and sent to the Property Tax Division by November 1, 2020
or within 30 days after the commitment date, whichever is later, in order to avoid reduction or loss
of any entitlement under the Tree Growth Tax Law municipal reimbursement program for the 2020



MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL VALUATION RETURN

Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT County: YORK

VALUATION INFORMATION

1. Enter the number and type of new, demolished and converted residential buildings in your municipality since
April 1, 2019, giving the approximate increase or decrease in full market value.

One Family Two Family 3-4 Family 5 Family Plus | Mobile Homes | Seasonal Homes
New 34 1
Demolished 6

Converted

$1,027,400

$14,640,552

2. Enter any new industrial or commercial growth started or expanded since April 1, 2019, giving the approximate
full market value and additional machinery, equipment, etc.

3. Enter any extreme losses in valuation since April 1, 2019, giving a brief explanation such as
"fire” or "mill closing", etc. giving the loss at full market value.

4. Explain any general increase or decrease in valuation since April 1, 2019 based on revaluations, change in ratio
used, adjustments, etc.



1. Total taxable valuation of real estate 1 2,001,956,500
(must match MVR Page 1, line 6)
2. Total taxable valuation of personal property 2 9,059,900
{must match MVR Page 1, line 10)
3. Total taxable valuation of real estate and personal property (Line 1 plus line 2) 3[ 2,011,016, 700
- ?mfst match MVR Page 1, line 11)
4. (a) Total exempt value for all homestead exemptions granted  4(a) 18,652,500
(must match MVR Page 1, line 14f)
(b) Homestead exemption reimbursement value 4(b)| 13,056,750
~ (line ?(é)_mu_lupned by 0.7)
5. {a) Total exempt value of all BETE qualified property 5(a) 1,569,780
(must match MVR Page 2, line 15¢)
(b) The statutory standard reimbursement for 2020 is 50% 5(b)| 784,890
Municipalities with significant personal property & equipment {iine 5(a) multiplied by 0.5)
may qualify for more than 50% reimbursement. Contact MRS for the Enhanced Calculator Form. |DO NOT QUALIFY ]
6. Total valuation base (Line 3 plus line 4(b) plus line 5(b})) 6; L5t 3(124 858 340
ASSESSMENTS
7. County tax 7 $1,150,725.00
8. Municipal appropriation 8 $9,553,964.00
9. TIF Financing plan amount 9 $0.00
(must match MVR Page 2, line 16¢ + 16d)
10. Local education appropriation (local share/contribution) 10 $11,447,719.00
(Adjusted to municipal fiscal year)
11. Total assessments (Add lines 7 through 10) 1 : $§§;1_52,408.00_]
ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS
12. Anticipated state municipal revenue sharing 12 $75,000.00
13. Other revenues: (All other revenues that have been formally 13 $3,057,135.00
appropriated to be used to reduce the commitment such as excise tax revenue, Tree Growth reimbursement, trust fund or bank
interest income, appropriated surplus revenue, etc. (Do not Include any homestead or BETE relmbursement)
14. Total deductions (Line 12 plus line 13) 14] ‘ 7 7$f:§—132 135.00 |
15. Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) 157A ;'“ §:|'§ 650 273. 3.00 |
16. | $1§:020,273:00 | x 1.05 = | $19,971,286.65 Maximum Allowable Tax
g (Amount from Ime1_55_ . - ) _ -
17. [ $19,020,273.00 -+ 2,024,858,340 = 0.009393 |Minimum Tax Rate
~ (Amount from line 15) (Amount from line6) —
18. | $19,971,286.65 | - |  2,024,858,340 | = 0.009863 |Maximum Tax Rate
: B (Amount from llne 16) B (l_\moum from line 6) d 7__: ) i_w S ,_:_
19. [ 72 011,016 700} X 0.009450 = $19,004,107.82 1Tax for Commitment
~ (Amountfromline) (Selected Rate) :_ (Enter on MVR Page 1, line 13) _
20. |  $19,020,273.00 x 0.05 = ~ $951,013.65 |Maximum Overlay
) V(Armoum from line 15) ) s ) -
21. L 13,056 750] X 0.009450 ] = $123 386.29 Homestead Reimbursement
' 7g\_rrnﬂﬁjrom linedb) __ (SelectedRate) £Mer on@& Assessment Warrant)
22. 784,890 | x | 0.009450 ] - $7,417.21 |BETE Reimbursement
B (Amcunt from line 5b) line 5b) " (Selected Rate) (Enter on Ilne9 Assessment Wan'ant)_
23. [ $19 134 911.31 ' - $19, 020 273. O_J $114,638.31 Overlay
(Llne 19 plus lines 21 and 22 ) (Amoum from line 15) ) (Erﬁer on line 5, Assessment Warrant)

MAINE REVENUE SERVICES - 2020 MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION STANDARD FORM
Municipality: KENNEBUNKPORT

BE SURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM BEFORE FILLING IN THE TAX ASSESSMENT WARRANT

(if Line 23 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)
Results from this completed form should be used to prepare the Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant,
Certificate of Assessment to Municipal Treasurer and Municipal Valuation Return.
-10 -






Item 9

STATE OF MAINE

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT

Division Use Only
License No:
Application for an On-Premises License 22 By:
Deposit Date:
All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly. Amt. Deposited:
Payment Type:
: OK with SOS:
SectionI: Licensee/Applicant(s) Information; Wi 508: YesO NoO
Type of License and Status
Legal Business Entity Applicant Name (corporation, LLC): | Business Name (D/B/A):
Asador, LLC The Lost Fire
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Physical Location:
German Lucarelli 62 Mills Road, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Names): Mailing address, if different:
PO BOX 3097 Kennebunkport ME
Mailing address, if different from DBA address: Email Address:
galucarelli@gmail.com
Telephone # Fax #: Business Telephone # Fax #;
6462417600 2072040123
Federal Tax Identification Number: Maine Seller Certificate # or Sales Tax #:
82-4756335 ReSale Cerribicate # 193204
Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers Permit: Website address:
Rebailee 3 119%%065 www.thelostfire.com
1. New license or renewal of existing license? 0 New Expected Start date:
X  Renewal  Expiration Date: 08/17/2020

2. The dollar amount of gross income for the licensure period that will end on the expiration date above:

Food: $ 595,984.00

Beer, Wine or Spirits: $ 273,687.00

Guest Rooms:

3. Please indicate the type of alcoholic beverage to be sold: (check all that apply)

X Spirits

K Wine

MMalt Liquor (beer)

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020

RECEIVED
JUL 15 200

S

Page 1 of 11




4. Indicate the type of license applying for: (choose only one)

X Restaurant O  Class A Restaurant/Lounge O  Class A Lounge
(Class L I1, IT1, IV) (Class XI) (Class X)

O Hotel a Hotel — Food Optional 0 Bed & Breakfast
(Class L, IL, II1, IV) (Class I-A) (Class V)

O Golf Course (included optional licenses, please check if apply) [J Auxiliary O Mobile Cart
(Class L IL, 111, IV)

| Tavern O Other:
(Class IV)

O Qualified Caterer O Self-Sponsored Events (Qualified Caterers Only)

Refer to Section V for the License Fee Schedule on page 9

5. Business records are located at the following address:

62 Mills Road, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046

6. Is the licensee/applicant(s) citizens of the United States? X Yes [ No

7. Is the licensee/applicant(s) a resident of the State of Maine? X Yes O No

NOTE: Applicants that are not citizens of the United States are required to file for the license as a
business entity.

8. Is licensee/applicant(s) a business entity like a corporation or limited liability company?

X Yes O No  If Yes, complete Section VII at the end of this application

9. For a licensee/applicant who is a business entity as noted in Section L, does any officer, director, member,
manager, shareholder or partner have in any way an interest, directly or indirectly, in their capacity in any
other business entity which is a holder of a wholesaler license granted by the State of Maine?

O Yes X No RECEIVED

O Not applicable — licensee/applicant(s) is a sole proprietor JUL 15 2020

Liquor licensing
& Enforcement

On Premise Application, Rev. 3/2020 Page 2 of 11






Item 10

STATE OF MAINE

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES
BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS
DIviISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT

Division Use Only
License No:
Application for an On-Premises License Qlass: By:
) Deposit Date:
All Questions Must Be Answered Completely. Please print legibly. Amt. Deposited:
Payment Type:
OK with SOS: Yes3 N
SectionI:  Licensee/Applicant(s) Information; hud st NoOJ
Type of License and Status
Legal Business Entity Applicant Name (corporation, LL.C): | Business Name (D/B/AY:

Maine-lyEnglish Inc 1802 House Bed and Breakfast Inn
Individual or Sole Proprictor Applicant Name(s): Physical Location:
Eileen Robley 15 Locke Street, Kennebunkport, ME 04046
Individual or Sole Proprietor Applicant Name(s): Mailing address, if different:
Nicholas Robley
Mailing address, if different from DBA address: Email Address:
info@1802house.com
Telephone # Fax #: Business Telephone # Fax #:
207 967 5632
Federal Tax Identification Number: Maine Seller Certificate # or Sales Tax #:
83-36258434 1199363
Retail Beverage Alcohol Dealers Permit: Website address:
BB-2019-11995 www.1802house.com
1. New license or renewal of existing licensc? O New Expected Start date: -
3 Renewal Expiration Date: 07/25/2020

2. The dollar amount of gross income for the licensure period that will end on the expiration date above:

Food: $ 250.00

Beer, Wine or Spirits: $ 790.00

Guest Rooms:

3. Please indicate the type of alcoholic beverage to be sold: (check all that apply)

X Malt Liquor (beer) O

X Wine

Spirits



4

Indicate the type of license applying for: (choose only one)

O Restaurant O Class A Restaurant/Lounge O Class A Lounge
(Class I, 11, 11, IV) (Class XT) (Class X)

0  Hotel O Hotel — Food Optional X  Bed & Breakfast
(Class 1, I, IT1, IV) (Class I-A) (Class V)

O Golf Course (included optional licenses, please check if apply) [ Auxiliary 4 Mobile Cart
(Class I, I1, 11, TV)

O Tavern O Other:
(Class IV)
O Qualified Caterer O Self-Sponsored Events (Qualified Caterers Only)

Refer to Section V for the License Fee Schedule on page 9

. Business records are Jocated at the following address:

Is the licensee/applicant(s) citizens of the United States? O Yes )Z( No

Is the licensee/applicant(s) a resident of the State of Maine? ﬂ Yes 0O No
NOTE: Applicants that are not citizens of the United States are required to file for the license as a
business entity.

Is licensee/applicant(s) a business entity like a corporation or limited liability company?

X Yes O No  If Yes, complete Section VII at the end of this application

For a licensee/applicant who is a business entity as noted in Section I, does any officer, director, member,
manager, shareholder or partner have in any way an interest, directly or indirectly, in their capacity in any
other business entity which is a holder of a wholesaler license granted by the State of Maine?

O Ye K No

O Not applicable — licensee/applicant(s) is a sole proprietor






Item 11

August 13, 2020
Shellfish Conservation Committee
Term: Three years
Members: Minimum of five, maximum of seven. (According to the Kennebunkport
Shellfish Conservation Ordinance.)

Expiration
Eric D. Wildes 2023
David Conway 2022
Charles F. Zeiner 2023
Everett Leach 2023

Area Biologist: Bryant Lewis

bryant.j.lewis@maine.gov



Arlene McMurray

From: cmsmailer@civicplus.com on behalf of John N Kraeuter via Town of Kennebunkport, ME
<cmsmailer@civicplus.com>

Sent: Sunday, August 23, 2020 9:04 AM

To: Arlene McMurray

Subject: Form submission from: Online Application for Boards/Committees

Submitted on Sunday, August 23, 2020 - 9:03am
Submitted values are:

Choose from the following: Shellfish Conservation Committee
==Please provide the following information:==

Full Name: John N Kraeuter
Email: -
Residential Address:
Residential Phone: ("
Business Address:
Business Phone:
Mailing Address (if different):

Are you registered to vote in Kennebunkport? Yes Please list Membership in
community organizations, dates involved, and activities performed: Maine Healthy
Beaches Volunteer Sampler 2016? to Present Do you have any skills, experience, or
training you would like to mention?
| have been coming to Goose Rocks Beach since | was a child and spent most of my
summers from the early 1950's to present at that beach. | am familiar with the tidal
flats at GRB and the Batson River complex, and less familiar with the Little River
system. | do not know much about the remainder of the
Kennebunkport clam flats. | moved permanently to Maine in 2016 and have
resided here since then. | have been volunteering with the Maine Healthy Beaches
program for the past few summers.

| have a PhD in Biology with emphasis in marine benthic ecology. | spent nearly 40
years working in that field with a focus on aquaculture and bivalve biology,
aquaculture, and fisheries. | am retired, but have an Adjunct
Professorship with the University of New England Marine Science Center. If
you would like me to provide a complete professional resume I'd be glad to do so.

What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board or committee? | believe | can
bring a broad science based marine ecology perspective to the committee.



List the top 3 choices that you would like to serve on( 1. 2. 3. in desired order)?
Shellfish Conservation Committee

The results of this submission may be viewed at:
https.//www.kennebunkportme.gov/node/2661/submission/11436



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT

Application for Boards, Committees & Commissions
To the Town Manager:

I hereby request to be considered for membership to the following board(s) and/or
committee(s): (If more than one, please indicate your preference: 1,2,3...)

o Administrative Code Committee o Lighting Committee

0 Board of Assessment Review o Parsons Way

o Budget Board o Planning Board

o Cape Porpoise Pier Advisory Committee o Road Book Committee

o Cemetery Committee o Sewer Advisory Committee
o Conservation Commission o, Shade Tree Committee

o Government Wharf Committee m/ Shellfish Advisory Committee
o Growth Planning Committee “ o Solid Waste Committee

o Kennebunk River Committee ' o Zoning Board of Appeals
Blword |l 74540
Signature of Appliéant Date

Preliminary Information

Name (Print): Eéwﬂ—}é 36/_//36%

Residence Address: . e C Phone: .. o

v

Business Address: Phone:

Mailing Address:

(if different)

E-mail Address: - - . e

— — 7 VX =T

Men_;bership in comaunity o-l:-g_anizati;ns:

Organization Dates Activities

Z:\My Documents\Forms, Formats, etc\Committee List- 2019-no Sidewalk HT or Sr Advis or VPMP.doc



Do you have any skills, experience, or training you would like to mention?
Lve OfDrn ) of the ¢)pm QMSJ iy Fratheyd
RS (I Lowsdgn And 5o Eocth

What is your reason for wanting to serve on this board or committee?

1 beles J_mu/é dDe o0& §9mé/)€0 pnd
L/-O())é \ll<(“ 1Lb ID"\ 5/‘6?&?%“ c))é’(cp/éuﬁé’
6?)"\’\'61’\6'({3

Are you registered to vote in Kennebunkport? Please check one: Yes o0 No

Please return the completed application to: Town Manager, 6 Elm St., P.O. Box 566,
Kennebunkport, ME 04046. You will be contacted upon receipt.

Z:Wy Documents\Forms, Formats, etc\Committee List- 2019-no Sidewalk HT or Sr Advis or VPMP.doc






Iitem 12

MEMORANDUM
To: Board of Selectmen
From: Laurie Smith, Town Manager
Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development
Re: Short Term Rental Ordinance
Dt:  October 5, 2020

Attorney Amy Tchao has reviewed the draft ordinance language prepared by Werner
Gilliam. Attached to this memo is the updated draft language for your consideration. As
part of the Selectmen consideration and legal review we wish to gather further input in
particular on the following items:

Section B: The ordinance will not impact condominium/hotel rentals such as the Resort
at Goose Rocks as they are classified differently under the land use ordinance.

Section D: Should licenses be transferrable to the new owner of a property? Should the
new owner be given a grace period to obtain their own license? On one hand the value
of the property could be impacted by the loss of the license. On the other hand should
people on a waiting list be given an opportunity to have a short term rental?

Section D3: Should there be a 7 day minimum stay requirement?

Section E: Should licensing be through the Town Clerk and coordinated with other
departments (like liquor and victualers)? Should licensing be handled by the Codes
Office?

Section E5: The license will require an inspection of the property for the original license
and then once every five years. lIs this in alignment with the thoughts of the BOS?

Section G5: Should it be required that all parking be off street? How will that impact
downtown and GRB locations?

Section G6: It is assumed that the individual rental agreements should be stricter or at
least consistent with the town rules. Should behavior of tenants, which is typically
spelled out in a good neighbor guideline, be something the Town should address?

Section H: After three substantiated complaints a license could be suspended. Is this in
alignment with the thoughts of the BOS? Are all complaints measured the same?
(garbage out 3 times vs. overbooking or parties). Who has authority to suspend a
license? Should it be the Codes Office, Town Manager, or Board of Selectmen? Who
sits as the appeal board for a suspension?

Section I: Do you want to determine the number of licenses in the ordinance or set the
number annually? On the advice of our attorney, the current language states that the
license number shall not be less than the year before.



Kennebunkport Short-term Rental License/Ordinance

A. Purpose:
The purpose of this ordinance/license is to require the disclosure and licensing of short-term rentals
operated within the Town of Kennebunkport, and to balance the desire of property owners to rent
their properties to short-term tenants with the desire of residents to preserve the peaceful quiet
and enjoyment of their residential neighborhoods. This Ordinance is intended to ensure that
residential neighborhoods are not unduly impacted by the operation of short-term rentals within
the Town, and to provide a licensing program that enables the Town to monitor and track the
proliferation of short-term rentals within its borders.

B. Applicability: This ordinance/license may be applied to all legal residential dwelling units with
the exception of accessory apartments that have been constructed/permitted after November 3™
2009.

C. Definitions:

Advertising: Any form of communication for marketing that is used to encourage, persuade or
manipulate viewers, readers or listeners into contracting for goods and/or services as may be
viewed through various media, including, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, flyers,
handbills, television commercials, radio, signage, direct mail, websites or text messages.

Dwelling unit: One or more rooms arranged for complete, independent housekeeping purposes with
space for living and sleeping; space or facilities for eating or cooking; and provisions for sanitation.
For purposes of this regulation Recreational vehicles are not considered dwelling units.

Good Neighbor guidelines: A document prepared by the town that summarizes the general rules of
conduct, consideration and respect, including, without fimitation, provisions pertaining to the use
and occupancy of a dwelling unit used or occupied as a short-term rental.

Owner: A person who is the owner of record of real property as documented by deed or other
document evidencing ownership recorded at the York County Registry of Deeds.

Short-term rental: The use of a residential dwelling unit offered for rent for transient occupancy by
tenants for a tenancy of less than 30 days, excluding motels, hotels, bed and breakfasts, inns, and
residential rental accommodations.

D. General Requirements:

1. License Required: No Short-term rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated without first
obtaining a Short-term rental License. Failure to obtain or renew a license prior to offering,
advertising, or renting the short-term rental shall require payment of double the short-term rental
license fee. The second failure to obtain or renew a license (within a 5-year period) shall be

Wg 8/19/20



prohibited from obtaining a license for one (1) year. A license application received more than 30
days after the license deadline shall be considered late. A short-term rental license shall be valid for
the calendar year in which the license is issued. The property must remain in compliance with the
short-term rental license for the calendar year in which the license is issued.

Licenses are not transferable to a new owner. Any change in ownership or change in the
members/managers/officers of an owner shall require a new license. Licenses are limited to the
dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a different dwelling unit.

2. Advertising: It shall be unlawful to advertise occupancy or use of a short-term rental that has not
been licensed. For the purposes of this section, the term "advertise" shall mean any form of
communication for marketing that is used to encourage, persuade or manipulate viewers, readers or
listeners into contracting for goods and/or services as may be viewed through various media
included, but not limited to newspapers, magazines, flyers, handbills, television commerecials, radio,
signage, direct mail, websites or text messages. The short-term rental advertising must be consistent
with the terms of the short-term rental license and must include the current short-term rental
license number. Advertising of the short-term rental must state that the short-term must be rented
for a minimum period of seven consecutive (7) days.

3. Minimum stay length: No more than one (1) rental/use of the short-term rental shall occur in a
seven (7) day period. When a rental or non-compensated use of the property by any one individual
or group, including but not limited to personal or family use by the property owner, of less than
seven (7) days occurs, the property shall remain vacant for the remaining portion of the seven (7)
day period. Further, not more than one Short-term rental agreement shall be entered for any given
property for any consecutive seven-day period.

4. Registration record: The short-term rental owner must (a) maintain accurate, up-to-date records
of all rental transactions involving the short-term rental, including the number of tenants and the
length of their stays, and upcoming reservations; and (b} present said information to Town
inspection officials upon request. Failure of the short-term rental owner to provide this information
within 5 business days of a Town request for the same shall be considered a violation of this section.

E. Review Procedure:

Issuance procedure:

1. Short-term rental License applications shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement Office where it
shall be endorsed with the date and time of receipt. Applications may be submitted beginning in
October of the previous license year. The Code Enforcement Officer shall review all applications for
completeness and accuracy and in the order that they were received.

2. The Code Enforcement Officer shall have the authority to issue a Short-term rental license.

Wg 8/19/20



3. The Code Enforcement Officer shall provide a Short-term rental application to be completed by the
applicant and submitted to the Code Enforcement Officer accompanied by the Short-term rental license
fee as established by the Board of Selectmen. The form shall include a non-exclusive checklist of code
requirements that the property owner shall demonstrate compliance with.

4. The Code Enforcement Officer shall determine if the form has been properly completed before any
license is issued.

5. The first time that a Short-term rental license is submitted for a property, no license shall be issued
until the Code Enforcement Officer or designee has inspected the proposed Short-term rental property
for compliance with the Short-term rental Standards and compliance with building code requirements.
Thereafter, renewal of a Shori-term rental license shall require inspection by the Code Enforcement
Officer of the Short-term rental property no less than once every five years.

When the Code Enforcement Officer does not conduct an annual inspection, the Short-term rental
owner shall certify that there have been no material changes since the last inspection by the Code
Enforcement Officer.

6. If the Code Enforcement Officer determines that the proposed Short-term rental application complies
with the Short-term rental Standards, a Short-term rental license shall be issued. A license shall be valid
for one (1) year from date of issuance. The license may be subject to suspension by the Code
Enforcement Officer if the Short-term rental property becomes non-compliant with the Short-term
rental Standards and may be revoked.

F. Submission Requirements:
The Short-term rental license application shall include the following information:
1. Location. The street address and map/ block/lot number of the Short-term rental property.

2. Contact Person/Owner Responsibility. The name of the owner of the Short-term rental property and
contact information, including address and telephone number. In addition, if someone other than the
owner is acting as the local contact person, contact information for that person shall also be provided.
Regardless of who enters the Short-term rental agreement, or who may be designated as the owner’s
contact person, the property owner shall be responsible for compliance with the Short-term rental
Ordinance provisions.

3. Availability. The registration form shall include when, during the calendar year, the Short-term rental
will be available for rental. If this changes, the owner shall notify the Code Enforcement Officer.

4. All information needed to demonstrate compliance with the standards listed below.

Wg 8/19/20



G. Standards:

The Code Enforcement Officer shall issue a Short-term rental license upon the applicant satisfying the
above requirements if the following standards are met:

1. Code compliance. An applicant’s property, without limitation, comply with the following building
safety requirements code sections of the (International Residential Code, (“IRC,”) and the International
Building Code, (“IBC”):

a. IRC Section R 314, Smoke Alarms: A smoke alarm is required in each bedroom. A smoke alarm is also
required outside of each bedroom and in the immediate vicinity. A smoke alarm is also required to be on
each story of the dwelling, including basements and habitable attics. The alarms shall be interconnected
as much as reasonably possible. {Reference IRC Section R314)

b. IRC Section R 315, Carbon Monoxide Alarms: If a house has an attached garage or a fuel fired
appliance, a carbon monoxide alarm shall be installed outside each bedroom and 2 in the immediate
vicinity. (Reference IRC Section R315)

c. IBC Section 906, Portable Fire Extinguishers: At least one portable fire extinguisher shall be mounted
in a prominent location. One size/type 2/A is required or two size/type 1/A extinguishers. The building
shall be an R-1 Occupancy (Boarding House) for the purpose of determining the type and location of
portable fire extinguishers; IBC Section 1006.2. 1006.3 and 1006.4.

2.The applicant shall provide floor plans of the dwelling unit that shows the location of the alarms and
fire extinguisher(s).

3. Building evacuation plan. A building evacuation plan shall be prominently posted in the Short-term
rental property during the rental period.

4. Sanitary waste disposal. The applicant shall submit information demonstrating that adequate sanitary
waste disposal is available in compliance with the Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules, or that
the property is served by public sewer. This shall include the total number of bedrooms included in the
property, any additional sleeping space, and the total number of tenants that the property
accommodates. The total number of tenants used to determine adequacy of sanitary waste disposal
shall not be less than the total number of tenants that the property is advertised to accommodate. For
the purpose of evaluating the adequacy of a subsurface disposal system, every two tenants shall be
equivalent to one bedroom.

5. Parking. The applicant shall include a depiction of how parking will be provided for tenants and guests
on the same lot where the Short-term rental is located. Garage parking spaces not allowed for tenant
use shall not be used to meet the Short-term rental parking requirement.

Wg 8/19/20



6. Rental Agreement Addendum. The Short-term rental license application shall be submitted with an
addendum to be attached to the Short-term rental agreement between owner and tenant that shall be
provided to all tenants. The Town shall not be responsible for enforcement of the rental agreement of
addendum. The rental agreement addendum shall include the following:

a. Contact person and contact information.
b. Emergency responder contact information.
¢. Building evacuation plan.

d. Maximum number of tenants and guests.

e. Parking arrangements, including a prohibition of tenants and guests parking in a manner that impedes
access by emergency vehicles to the property or any other dwelling in the neighborhood.

f. Maximum number of tenants and guests allowed at the property.

g. Good neighbor guidelines.

7. Limit on rental intensity.

The maximum tenant capacity of a short-term rental shall be limited to no more than 2 tenants per
bedroom, plus 2 additional tenants for no more than 1 additional sleeping space.

H. Suspension and Revocation of License:

A license for a Short-term rental may be suspended or revoked if the Code Enforcement Officer
determines that one or more substantiated complaints regarding Short-term rentals of a property have
been made in a three-year period. The Police Department may provide a report of conditions observed
and reported to the Code Enforcement Officer.

Complaint. Any individual or town official may file and/or initiate a complaint against a Short-term
rental license holder. If the Police Department or the Code Enforcement Officer receives a complaint,
they shall visit the property. The Police Department shall generate a report of the facts its officers have
observed upon a visit, and statements made to them regarding the Short-term rental. The Police
Department shall then forward the report to the Code Enforcement Officer. When the Code
Enforcement Officer receives a report from the Police Department, or the Code Enforcement Officer has
responded to a complaint or independently investigated, the Code Enforcement Officer shall inspect the
property and shall collect information related to the complaint, including notifying the property owner
and requesting information regarding the complaint. Within five days of receiving a Police Report or
complaint, the Code Enforcement Officer shall determine if the complaint is substantiated. A complaint
is substantiated when the Code Enforcement Officer concludes that one or more violations of the Short-
term rental provisions cccurred.

2. First Substantiated Complaint. Once the Code Enforcement Officer has made a finding of a
substantiated complaint, the Code Enforcement Officer shall notify the property owner in writing. The
notification shall require the property owner to meet with the Code Enforcement Officer within five (5)

Wg 8/19/20



business days from the date of the written notification, or such other time as is agreed upon by the
Code Enforcement Officer, to identify ways in which the violation(s) will be corrected. The owner will
agree to take all necessary measures to correct the violation(s), which measures shall be memorialized
in a written agreement at the conclusion of the meeting and shall be fully implemented within one (1)
week of said meeting unless another date is agreed to by the Code Enforcement Officer. Failure of the
property owner to enter into such an agreement at the conclusion of the meeting will be deemed a
second 36 violation of the Short-term rental provisions. In addition, the Code Enforcement Officer may
suspend the Short-term rental license for a term not to exceed thirty days.

3. Second Substantiated Complaint. Once the Code Enforcement Office has made a finding of two (2)
substantiated complaints, the Code Enforcement Officer shall notify the property owner in writing that
the Short-term rental license shall be suspended for not less than thirty days, nor more than one
hundred twenty days. The notification shall require the property owner to meet with the Code
Enforcement Officer within five (5) business days from the date of the written notification, or such other
time as is agreed upon by the Code Enforcement Officer, to identify ways in which the violation(s) will be
corrected. The owner will agree to take all necessary measures to correct the violation(s), which
measures shall be memorialized in a written agreement at the conclusion of the meeting and shall be
fully implemented within one (1) week of said meeting unless another date is agreed to by the Code
Enforcement Officer. Failure of the property owner to enter into such an agreement at the conclusion of
the meeting will be deemed a violation of the Short-term rental provisions.

4. Third Substantiated Complaint. Once the Code Enforcement Officer has made a finding of three
substantiated complaints, the Code Enforcement Officer shall notify the property owner in writing that
the Short-term rental license has been revoked for (1)one calendar year.

5. Appeal. An appeal to the Zoning Board of Appeals as an Administrative Appeal may be taken by any
person aggrieved by a determination of the Code Enforcement Officer

Effective Date. [to be determined.] The Short-term rental provisions shall be fully effective as to all
contracts for short-term rentals executed on or after 30 days from date of enactment, and shall further
apply to all contracts in effect on such date to the extent the application of these provisions would not
result in a substantial impairment of such existing contracts.

I. Maximum Rate of Licenses Issued:

The Code Enforcement Officer shall issue short-term rental licenses on an annual basis. The total
number of annual licenses shall be set each year by the Board of Selectmen at their first meeting of the
calendar year. In no event shall the number of annual licenses be less than the number issued in the
previous calendar year:

Wg 8/19/20






Item 13

September 26, 2020

Kennebunkport, ME

To: L. Smith, Board of Selectmen

Please accept my resignation from the Senior Advisory Committee effective
immediately. Several months at home have focused my priorities and Town
service is no longer among them.

Regards,

Susan Boak

/]
/



